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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Orkla India Limited (formerly known as Orkla India Private Limited and MTR Foods Private
Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Orkla India Limited [formerly known as
Orkla India Private Limited and MTR Foods Private Limited] (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company™),
its subsidiary (the Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”), its associate and joint
venture comprising of the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss, including other comprehensive income, the consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
“the consolidated financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial information
of the subsidiary, associate and joint venture, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs
of the Group, its associate and joint venture as at March 31, 2023, their consolidated profit including other
comprehensive loss, their consolidated cash flows and the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the *Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group, associate and joint venture in accordance with the *Code of Ethics’
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Other Information

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income,
consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group including its associate and
joint venture in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in
the Group and of its associate and joint venture are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of their respective companies and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of
the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in
the Group and of its associate and joint venture are responsible for assessing the ability of their respective
companies to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless Management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associate and joint venture
are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of their respective companies.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in °
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to the
consolidated financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

«  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by Management.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associate and joint venture to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and its associate and joint
venture to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group and its associates and joint venture of which we are the independent auditors, to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial
statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated
financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included
in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

(a) We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of one subsidiary, whose

financial statements include total assets of Rs 148.6 million as at March 31, 2025, and total revenues of Rs
245.9 million and net cash inflows of Rs 38.6 million for the year ended on that date. These financial statement
and other financial information have been audited by other auditor, which financial statements, other financial
information and auditor’s reports have been furnished to us by the Management. The consolidated financial
statements also include the Group’s share of net loss of Rs. 4.0 million for the year ended March 31,2025, as
considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of an associate and a joint venture, whose
financial statements, other financial information have been audited by other auditors and whose reports have
been furnished to us by the Management. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the subsidiary, associate and joint venture, and
our report in terms of Sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary,
associate and joint venture, is based solely on the reports of such other auditors.

The joint venture is located outside India whose financial statements and other financial information have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in their country and which have been
audited by other auditor under generally accepted auditing standards applicable in their country. The Holding
Company’s Management has converted the financial statements of such joint venture located outside India
from accounting principles generally accepted in their respective country to accounting principles generally
accepted in India. We have audited these conversion adjustments made by the Holding Company’s
Management. Our opinion in so far as it relates to the balances and affairs of such joint venture located outside
India is based on the report of other auditor and the conversion adjustments prepared by the Management of
the Holding Company and audited by us.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work
done and the reports of the other auditors.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1
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(a)
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(©)

(d)

(e)

()

(&)

(h)

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, based on our audit and on the
consideration of report of the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information
of the associate company, incorporated in India, as noted in the *Other Matter’ paragraph we give in the
“Annexure 17 a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the other
auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiary, associate and joint
venture, as noted in the ‘other matter’ paragraph we report, to the extent applicable, that:

We/the other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and reports of the other auditors except, as detailed in note 53(i) of the consolidated financial
statements, the information relating to daily back-up logs for two accounting software is not available for
the period April 01, 2024 to August 19, 2024 and April 01, 2024 to October 10, 2024, respectively, and for
the matters stated in the paragraph (h) and (i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended,;

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of
Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account maintained for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements;

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on March
31,2025, taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory
auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act of the associate company, none of the directors of
the Holding Company and its associate company, incorporated in India, is disqualified as on March 31, 2025
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements of the Holding Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure 2" to this report. This report, however, does not include Report on the internal financial
controls under clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Report on internal
financial controls’) in respect of associate company, since based on the corresponding reports of other auditor
as noted in the ‘Other Matter’ paragraph and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
said report on internal financial controls is not applicable to the said associate company basis the exemption
available to the said associate company under MCA notification no. G.S.R. 583(E) dated June 13,2017, read
with corrigendum dated July 13, 2017 on reporting on internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements.

The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Holding Company
and associate company incorporated in India for the year ended March 31, 2025;

The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated
in paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph (i)(vi) below on reporting under
Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended;
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Additionally, the audit trail of prior year has been preserved by the Holding Company and above referred
associate as per the statutory requirements for record retention, to the extent it was enabled and recorded in
the prior year, as stated in Note 53(ii) to the consolidated financial statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
[CAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 27, 2025
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report of even date

Based on our audit and on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements and other
financial information of the associate company incorporated in India, we state that:

(xxi) Qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditors Report) Order (CARO)
reports of the companies included in the consolidated financial statements are:

S.No. | Name CIN Holding company/ | Clause number of the
subsidiary/ CARO report which is
associate qualified or is adverse

1 Orkla India Private U15136KA1996PLC021007 | Holding Company vii(a)

Limited (formerly
known as Orkla
India Private
Limited and MTR
Foods Private
Limited)

For S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
[CAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

[ =
| Bengaluru ) ®

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 27, 2025
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Consolidated Financial Statements of
Orkla India Limited (formerly known as Orkla India Private Limited and MTR Foods Private Limited)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Orkla India Limited [formerly known as
Orkla India Private Limited and MTR Foods Private Limited] (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company™)
as of and for the year ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company which is a company incorporated in India, as of that
date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Holding Company which is a company incorporated in India, is responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls with reference to
these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the
Standards on Auditing, specified under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both, issued by ICAI Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to these consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to the consolidated financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these consolidated financial statements, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to these consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to the consolidated financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial control with reference to the consolidated financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of Management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the consolidated financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper Management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to the consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to the consolidated financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company, which is a company incorporated in India, have, maintained in all material
respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal
financial controls with reference to the consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at March
31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Mey hip Number: 104315
104315BMLNOZ9046

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 27, 2025



Orkla India Limited (formerly known as Orkla India Private Limited and MTR Foods Private Limited)

CIN: UI5136KA1996PLC021007
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in Rs. million, unless stated otherwise)

As at As at
Notes March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 3,485.1 4,060.9
Capital work-in-progress 3 77.8 36.2
Right-of-use assets 4a 394.6 449.6
Goodwill S 10,116.1 10,118.6
Other intangible assets 5 5,8103 5,920.8
[nvestments accounted for using equity method 6a 278.1 278.9
Financial assets
Investments 6a 0.0 0.0
Loans 7 4.6 6.1
Other financial assets 8 76.7 69.8
Other non-current assets 9 358 93.2
Income tax assets (net) 10 1,148.8 1,023.5
Deferred tax assets (net) I - 1.9
21,427.9 22,059.5
Current assets
Inventories 12 3,087.5 2,969.4
Financial assets
Investments 6b 1,474.3 2,971.5
Trade receivables 13 1,626.2 (,685.8
Cash and cash equivalents 14 812.8 395.8
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 15 1,094.3 750.0
Loans 16 24.4 71.9
Other financial assets 17 999.4 1,988.4
Other current assets 18 875.6 853.6
9,994.5 11,692.4
Assets held for sale 19 290.6 -
Total assets 31,713.0 33,751.9
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 20 137.0 134.0
Instruments entirely equity in nature 20 - 3.0
Other equity 21 24.458.0 27,933.5
Total equity 24,595.0 28,070.5
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 22 . 377
Lease liabilities 4b 4522 514.8
Other financial liabilities ' 26a 140.2 79.0
Government grants 23 - 10.7
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 1 906.0
24 13.2

Other non-current liabilities

1,561.4



Orkla India Limited (formerly known as Orkla India Private Limited and MTR Foods Private Limited)

CIN: UI5136KA1996PLC021007
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025
(Al amounts are in Rs. million, unless stated otherwise)

As at As at
Wit March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities 4b 91.8 80.0
Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 25 6514 621.1
enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditars other than micro 25 2,046.9 1,695.1
enterprises and small enterprises
Other financial liabilities 26b 1,662.5 1,305.9
Other current liabilities 27 759.0 177.0
Provisions 28 276.7 193.0
Current tax liabilities (net) 29 1.7 47.9
5,490.0 4,120.0
Total liabilities 7,118.0 5,681.4
Total equity and liabilities 31,713.0 33.751.9
Summary of material accounting policies 22823

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date attached herein

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
ICAI Firm registration number: 101049W/E300004

Chartered Accountants

Date; May 27, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Orkla India Limited (formerly known as Orkla India Private Limited and MTR Foods

Private Limited)

CIN: UlSlJ?KAlS‘%PLCDZIl)D?

Chairperson & Director
DIN: 01361367

Place: Oslo, Norway
Date: May 27, 2025

Suniana Calap
Chiefl Financial Officer

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 27, 2025

W\J/

Rashmi Satish Joshi
Independent Director
DIN: 06641898

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 27, 2025

Ao

Atle Vidn‘( I\ﬁgcl Johansen

Sanjay Sharma

Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer

DIN: 02581107

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 27, 2025

KaWshik Seshadri
Company Secretary

Membership no: A41800

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 27, 2025




Orkla India Limited (formerly known as Orkla India Private Limited and MTR Foods Private Limited)
CIN: U15136KA1996PLC021007

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in Rs. million except share data and per share data, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended For the year ended

Not
il March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income
Revenue from operations 30 23,947.1 23,560.1
Other income 31 605.3 319.8
Total income 24,552.4 23,879.9
Expenses
Cost of raw materials and packing materials consumed 32 11,7413 13,100.5
Purchase of stock-in-trade 33 1,439.7 680.5
(Increase)/decrease in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 34 274 (143.6)
Employee benefits expense 35 2,461.9 2,323.5
Finance costs 36 65.5 66.4
Depreciation and amortisation expense 37 617.3 621.2
Other expenses 38 4,308.4 4,185.2
Total expenses 20,661.5 20,833.7
Profit before share of profit/(loss) of associate and joint venture, exceptional items and tax 3,890.9 3,046.2
Exceptional items (net) 54 (336.4) -
Profit before tax and share of profit/(loss) of associate and joint venture 3,554.5 3,046.2
Share of profit/(loss) from associate and joint venture 41 (4.0) 22.1
Profit before tax 3,550.5 3,068.3
Tax expense:
- Current tax 39 870.6 635.1
- Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods 39 (13.4) 8.2
- Deferred tax charge 39 136.4 161.7
Total tax expense 993.6 805.0
Profit for the year 2,556.9 2,263.3
Other comprehensive income (OCI)
Items that will not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
(a) Re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans 40 (19.6) 87.6
Income tax effect on above 39 49 (22.0)
(b) Fair value losses on equity instruments 6a (24.6) 4
Income tax effect on above 39 = =
(39.3) 65.6
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
(a) Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 41 3:7 1.7
Income tax effect on above 41 2 £
37 17
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax (35.6) 67.3
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 2,521.3 2,330.6
Earnings per equity share 51
Basic and Diluted 18.7. 16.9
Summary of material accounting policies 22&23

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

As per our reporn of even date attached berewn

For and on behalf of the Board of Direciors of
Cirkla India Limited (formerly knows 33 Ovbila |
CIN: UISI36KA)P96PLCA2IONT

44{{ L'f‘v":%}{\‘)’x\;k{ )

For S.R. Batiibei & Assoristes LLP
HCAT Finn rogisiration aumber: 181089% E30000%
Chartered Accowsants

chvate Limited and MTR Faods Privare Limited)

I Guggor Atle Vidar Nagel Johansen Suaisns Calaps
Chairperson & Disector Dlrector & Chict Exceutive Officer  Chief Fnancial Officer
o e ;104383 DEN: 81361367 DIN: Q2581107
Plack: BenXaluru Place: Oslo, Norway Place: Bengaturs Place: Bengalurs

Dare Yoy N, 1025 Dwte: May 27, 2023 Date: May 27, 2025 Date: May 17, 2028

/

Satish Joshi K Seshadri
indepeadent Dircotor Coanpany Sccretary
DIN: 06641308 Membership so: AS1800

Plage: Musnbat
Date: May 27, 3023

Place: Bengalury
Date: May 27, 2025




Orkla India Limited (formerly known as Orkla India Private Limited and MITR Foods Private Limited)

CIN: U15136KA1996PLC021007
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the vear ended March 31, 2025
(All amownis are in Rs. million, unless stated otherwise)

For the ycar ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
A. Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 3.5505 3.068 3
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Exceptional items (net) 3364 .
Share of profit or loss of associate and joint venture 4.0 22.1)
Loss on liquidation of subsidiary 235 .
Share based payment 33 59
Depreciation of property. plant and equipment 410.7 4225
Amortisation of intangible assets 124.2 114.5
Depreciation of right-of-use assels 824 84.2
Interest expense - others 0.6 26
Interest expense - lease liabilities 544 536
Interest on government grants . 1.9
Unwinding of security deposit 3.2) 2.9
Gain on termination/modification of right-of-use assels (1.4)
Impairment loss/ (reversal of impairment loss) on trade receivables (49.6) 0.7
Property, plant and equipment/capital work-in-progress written off 8.1 -
Profit on sale of investments in units of mutual funds (300.4) (104.8)
Bad debis/advances written off 61.7 -
Fair value pain on financial instruments at fair value through profit and loss (net) (55.7) (44.1)
Liabilities wrilten back (50.8) (15)
(Gain)loss on sale of property. plant and equipment (net) 2.1) 0.5
Interest income (140.1) (87.1)
Rental income - (0.2)
GST input credit write off - 0.2
Unrealised foreign exchange gain (net) 4.6 (16.3)
Operating profit before working capital adjustments 4,040.1 3,477.9
Working capital adjustments;
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables §6.5 {510.8)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (118.1) 5317
(Increase) in financial assets, loans and other assets (248.1) (410 3)
Increase in tradle payables 3952 4983
Increase in financial liabilities and other liabilities 726.3 156.6
Increase in provisions 64.1 32.1
Cash generated from operations 4,946.0 3,775.5
Income tax paid (net of refunds) (1,029.3) (811.7)
Net cash Mow from operating activities (A) 3,916.7 2.9%
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property. plant and equipment and intangible assets (including capital work (208.1) (391.2)
in progress and capital advances)
Proceeds from sale of property. plant and equipment 13.9 9.8
Purchase of units of mutual funds (12,615.2) (7.659.9)
Proceeds from sale of units of mutual funds 14.452.0 7.186 6
Proceeds from the settlement of indemnity as per Share Purchase Agreement 1243 .
Repayment of loan by associate 50.0
Investment in deposits with bank and margin money deposits with original maturity 700.0 ”
more than 3 months (1.240.0)
Investment in deposits with financial institutions (250.0)
Investment in shares ol ussociate - (50.4)
Dividend received 0.0 0.0
Rent received - 02
Interest received 137 { 29.6
Purchase of other non-current investments (24.6) =
Nét cash flow (used in)/from Investing activities (B) 2,629.4 (2,365.3)




Orkla India Limited (formerly known as Orkla India Private Limited and MTR Foods Private Limited)
CIN: UISI36KA1996PLC021007

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in Rs million, nnless siated otherwise)

For the year ended For the ycar ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of short term borrowings - (3100)
Repayment of long term borrowings ()
Interest paid A 4.0)
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities (74.6) (70.6)
Interest on lease liabilities paid (54.4) (55.6)
Dividend paid (6.000 1) -
Share issue expenses - (6.4)
Net cash Mow used in financing activities (C) (6,129.1) (448.8)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 417.0 149.7
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 3958 246.1
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 812.8 395.8
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:

On current accounts 8123 3952
Cash on hand 0.5 0.6
Total cash and cash equivalents (refer note 14) 812.8 395.8
S y of material ing policies 23.&3.3
The panying notes are an integral part of the lidated financial t

Notes:

| The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in Ind AS - 7 “Statement of Cash Flows"
2. Refer note |5 for Change in Liabilitics arising from financing activitics and for non-cash financing and investing activities.

3. Refer note 52 for delails of non-cash activity for share swap pursuant to merger of Eastern Condiments Private Limited.

As per our report of even date attached hercin

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

ICALI Firm registration number: 101049 W/E300004 Orkla India Limited (formerly known as Orkla India Private Limited and MTR Foods
Private Limited)

CIN: U15136KA1996PLC021007

Chartered Accountants

Atle Vidar Nagpl Johansen Sanjay Shhrma

Chairperson & Direclor Managing Direclor & Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 01361367 DIN: 02581107

Place: Oslo, Nonvay Place: Bengaluru

Date: May 27, 2025 Date; May 27, 20“’2<

Suniana Caldpa < Seshadri
Chief Financial Officer Company Sccretary
Membership no: A41800

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 27, 2025 Date; May 27, 2025

Rashmi Satish Joshi
Independen Director
DIN: 06641898

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 27, 2025




Orkla India Limited (formerly known as Orkla [ndia Prisate Limited and MTR Foods Private Limites)
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31,2025

¢ 1l amonns ave in Rs million except share data and per share data, wnless stated othervises

a) Equity share capital —_— Ry e
Nos. Amount

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each, issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

As at April 1,2024

Shares issued during the year

Red Optionally Convertible Prel, Shares (ROCPS) converted to equily shares (refa note 82)
Asal March 31, 2028

Asat April 1,2023

Shares issued during the year (refer note 52) 7151526 76

Reedemable Optionally Conventible Prefe Shares (ROCPS) converted lo cquity shares (refer note 32) o 3

Asat March 31,2024 1240

b) lastruments entively cquity in nature

Redeemable Oplionally Convertible Preference Shares (ROCPS) of Rs.10 cach, Issued, subscribed and fully paid up

As at March M, 2024 3,05564 A0

Conerted 10 cquity shares (refer nole 321 o AUt Andy (i

As at March 11, 2025 W o - o .

As at April 1,2023

Shases issued during the year (refer aole 32) 611.128 61
1A 08 Sndy 1 h

Converted 1o cquity shares (refer nole $2) SRS 1.1, .75, P " . 1.3
Asat March 31,2024 st = 3.0

For movement in share capilal. refer note 20

¢) Other equity
Reserve and surplus Shares pentling | Other comprehensive income
Capital o Lejpheeseove e Forclgn currencs[  Fair value gains/ Totat
< apilal " fer 52y For " ey
Sccur:llu redemption C"'m.“ Retajoed (;am‘rl‘:!ulla:l {rofecnolen?) translation (losses) on equily
" . premiyos reserve Feseing EREDIRgE ron aren — rewene instruments e
Asat Aprit 1, 2024 1,095.0 n? 6,030.6 | 10.728.2 251 - . 9.7 1n.2 K
I'radif tog the sex . . - 25569 - . . - . 25569
Droubend - . 16.000 1) . - . . 16,000 1)
Oiher compichcensin e ngome 1oel o1 D] 2 s - (4.7 . - Ly A7 2468 13801
Vortal comprehensive ncome for the vear . . - (3,457.9) . - . 5 5 (24.6) (1,478.7)
Prasfon o fogal nowine "y 13 .
Compenotion cost telated W smplopee siane Pased) 3 . . ) 13
payment plans trefer notg 30 - - . = 3
A3 3t March 31,2028 iy 110950 na 6.030,6 7.269.0 2841 £ - 134 13.49) 24458.0
Asat April 1, 2023 11,1004 a7 . 8,399 19.2 . 2,700.0 B.O 1.z 22272.8
Profit for the year . . 226313 . . . 22633
Oiber comprehensii € inumne 1wt of L) = - .. 656 s - i - 17 _ b - 6713
Total camprehenvive Income for the vear . - - 23289 . . 1.7 - 2,330.6
Capital tesenve mimg on avconnt of mega efer noty . . 6.0306 . . . 60306
Shares issued on aceount of merger teter gote 82y . (2,700 0) . (2,700 0)/
Share sue eapenses (6 4) . . IR}
Compeasation et it o emphaes share based B 68 . ) g " 68
paswnent plans (refey note 111
Cross clange from ollimate holding  compan o . ) ) ©9) . ) 5 . 09
cnployes share based pasment plant | = e W R " e
Asat March 3. 2024 ool 11.095.0 aa 6.030.6 | 107282] 251 - - = 97 1.2 17908
Surnmary ol mnaterial ine policics Refecnole22&23 = - 2 - OB S e :
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial stalements
As per our repott of even dale auached herein
For S.R. Batliboi & Assoclates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
IC Al Firm cegistranion numbee: 1010 19W E300004 Orkla India Limited (formerly knowa as Orkla India Pey Limited
and MTR Foods Privale Limited)
Chartered Accountants CIN: UISII6KAIFP6PLCD21007

/MLL{/I/‘\i L _L,\ \ \_)

Alle Vidar 1?“ Johhnsen

A
1 & Chief Executive Officer

Pariner Chairperson & Direct o

v ipno 104315 DIN: 0136136 ! DIN: 02381107 DIN: 06641893
Pla\e: BengAluru Place: Oslo, Noovay Place: Bengaluru Place: Mumbai
Dai\ May 2 2025 Date: May 27, 2028 Date; May 27,2024 Date: May 27, 2025

K Ik Seshadel
Company Secretary
Membership no” A4 1500

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 27, 2025 Date: May 27. 2023




Orkla India Limited (formerly Orkla India Private Limited and MTR Foods Private Limited)
CIN: U15136KA1996PLC021007

Notes to consolidated financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in Rs. million, unless otherwise stated)

1.1 Corporate Information

Orkla India Limited (formerly Orkla India Private Limited and MTR Foods Private Limited) (“the Company™ or “Holding
Company™) [CIN No. U15136KA1996PLC021007] is a public company domiciled in India and was incorporated at
Bangalore in 1996 under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the Company is
No. 1. 2% and 3% Floor, 100 Feet, Inner Ring Road, Ashwini Layout, Ejipura. Bengaluru — 560047, Karnataka.

The Company has converted from Private Limited Company to Public Limited Company, through a special resolution passed
in the extraordinary general meeting of the shareholders of the Company held on March 13, 2025. Consequently, the name
of the Company has been changed to Orkla India Limited pursuant to a fresh certificate of incorporation issued by the
Registrar of Companies dated April 25. 2025.

The Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors
on May 27, 2025.

1.2 Group Information

The Company and its subsidiaries (the Company together with its subsidiaries hereinafter referred to as “the Group™) and its
associate and joint venture are engaged in the manufacture and sale of instant food mixes, spices, masalas and blended curry
powders made of spices, ready-to-eat food products, vermicelli, confectionery, beverages, coffee and rice products (viz.
Puttu Podi. 1dli Podi, Dosa Podi. Pathiri Podi, Appam Podi. etc.), etc. The Group also undertakes trading of certain food
products such as, spices, pickles. tea. tamarind. coconut oil and oral care products.

The Company is headquartered in Bengaluru and has its manufacturing facilities in Karnataka, Kerala, Andhra Pradesh,
Rajasthan, and warehouses and an extensive distribution network in India, Middle East countries and other overseas markets.

On December 1. 2018, the Company had acquired 1,112 shares of Pot Ful India Private Limited (Pot Ful), comprising of
10% shareholding in Pot Ful as at April 1, 2019. During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Company had further acquired
252 equity shares from the promoters of Pot Ful. resulting to 26.5% shareholding in Pot Ful and w.e.f July 15,2019, Pot Ful
became an associate of the Company. During the year ended March 31. 2024, the Company additionally subscribed to 21 8
and 539 equity shares respectively, further resulting to 30.47% shareholding in Pot Ful. During the year ended March 31,
2025. Pot Ful issued 280 shares to other shareholders, resulting in change of the Company's shareholding to 29.87%.

On September 19, 2007, the Group entered into an agreement with Mr. Sameer Kunhu Mohamed to set up a Joint Venture
Company Eastern Condiments Middle East & North Africa FZC, incorporated in United Arab Emirates (*ECMENA").
ECMENA is primarily engaged in trading of spices. ECMENA also renders agency services in respect of sales of'the Group’s
products in the Middle East countries.

Pursuant to merger order dated March 21,2025, from the Regional Director. wholly owned subsidiaries, BAMS Condiments
Impex Private Limited and Rasoi Magic Foods (India) Private Limited have been merged with the Company from April 1,
5024. Since the entities are under common control, the accounting has been done applying Pooling of Interest method as
prescribed in Appendix C of Ind AS 103 ‘Business Combinations” w.e.f. the first day of the earliest period presented i.e.
April 1, 2023.

2. Material accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation:

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group comprises of the consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement
of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement of changes in equity. the consolidated
cash flow Statement and the summary of material accounting policies and explanatory notes (*Collectively Consolidated
Financial Statements’).




Orkla India Limited (formerly Orkla India Private Limited and MTR Foods Private Limited)
CIN: U15136KA1996PLC021007

Notes to consolidated financial statement for the year ended March 31,2025

(All amounts are in Rs. million, unless otherwise stated)

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and
presentation requirement of Division I of Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule I11). as
applicable to the consolidated financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis as explained in the accounting policies
below, except for the following assets and liabilities measured at fair value as required by the relevant Ind AS:

a) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value; and
b) Derivative financial instruments.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.) and all the values are rounded off to the nearest
million, except when otherwise indicated. Certain numbers in the notes and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements have been presented as zero with one decimal (~0.0™). where the absolute amount is below Rs. 50,000 (fifty
thousand™).

2.2 Basis of consolidation
a. Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Group and its associate and joint venture.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed. or has rights. to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and
only if the Group has:

e  Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee)

e Exposure. or rights. to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

e  The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and when the
Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

e The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee
e Rights arising from other contractual arrangements
e The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

e The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other voting
rights holders

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the
subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets. liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the Consolidated Financial Statements from the date the Group gains
control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in
similar circumstances. [f a member of the Group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated
financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that Group
member's financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the Group’s
accounting policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that of
the parent company. i.e.. year ended on March 31. When the end of the reporting period of the parent’is g;ii(fg];7 t from that
J _‘\ ¥ —— /f




Orkla India Limited (formerly Orkla India Private Limited and MTR Foods Private Limited)
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Notes to consolidated financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in Rs. million, unless otherwise stated)

of a subsidiary. the subsidiary prepares. for consolidation purposes. additional financial information as of the same date as
the financial statements of the parent to enable the parent to consolidate the financial information of the subsidiary. unless it
is impracticable to do so.

Consolidation procedure:

2. Combine like items of assets. liabilities, equity. income. expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its
subsidiaries.

b. Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity
of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how to account for any related goodwill.

Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity. income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between entities of the Group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such
as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires
recognition in the Consolidated Financial Statements. Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that
arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

o

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the parent of
the Group and to the non-controlling interests. even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line
with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity. income. expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary. without a loss of control. is accounted for as an equity transaction. If the
Group loses control over a subsidiary. it:

. Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the date when
control is lost

. Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

o Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity
. Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

. Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

. Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

° Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or transferred directly to
retained earnings. if required by other Ind AS as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.

b. Associate and joint venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists
only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The considerations made in determining whether significant influence or joint control are similar to those necessary to
determine control over the subsidiaries.

The Group’s investments in its associate and joint venture are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity
method. the investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the investment
is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate or joint venture since the acquisition date.
Goodwill relating to the associate or joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for
impairment individually.
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Notes to consolidated financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in Rs. million, unless otherwise stated)

The consolidated statement of profit and loss reflects the Group's share of the results of operations of the associate and joint
venture. Any change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the Group’s OCI. In addition. when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate or joint venture.

If an entity’s share of losses of an associate or a joint venture equal or exceeds its interest in the associate or joint venture
(which includes any long-term interest that. in substance. form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or joint
venture), the entity discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture. If
the associate or joint venture subsequently reports profits. the entity resumes recognising its share of those profits only after
its share of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate and a joint venture is shown on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit and loss outside operating profit.

The financial statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group. When
necessary. adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method. the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss on its
investment in its associate or joint venture. At each reporting date. the Group determines whether there is objective evidence
that the investment in the associate or joint venture is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group calculates the amount
of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate or joint venture and its carrying value. and
then recognises the loss as “Share of profit of an associate and a joint venture’ in the consolidated statement of profit and
loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint
venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from

disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies:

(a) Current versus non-current classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet based on current/non-current classification. An
asset is treated as current when it is:

«  Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

«  Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

. Cash and cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

« Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

« Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

« Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period: or

«  There is no conditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other liabilities as non-current.

The terms of the liability that could. at the option of the counterparty. result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments
do not affect its classification.
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Notes to consolidated financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in Rs. million, unless otherwise stated)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash
equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

(b) Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees Millions. which is also the parent company’s functional
currency. For each entity the Group determines the functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. The Group uses the direct method of consolidation and on disposal of a
foreign operation the gain or loss that is reclassified to profit or loss reflects the amount that arises from using this method.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group’s entities at their respective functional currency spot
rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Group uses average rate if
the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of
exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss with the exception

of the following:

o Exchange differences arising on monetary items that forms part of a reporting entity’s net investment in a foreign
operation are recognised in profit or loss in the separate financial statements of the reporting entity or the individual
financial statements of the foreign operation, as appropriate. In the financial statements that include the foreign
operation and the reporting entity (e.g.. consolidated financial statements when the foreign operation is a subsidiary).
such exchange differences are recognised initially in OCI. These exchange differences are reclassified from equity to
profit or loss on disposal of the net investment.

. Exchange differences arising on monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the Group’s net investment
of a foreign operation. These are recognised in OCI until the net investment is disposed of, at which time, the cumulative
amount is reclassified to profit or loss.

. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded in OCI.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary
items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item
(i.e.. translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised
in OCI or profit or loss. respectively).

In determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) on
the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to advance consideration, the date of the
transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from
the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or recéipts in advance. the Group determines the transaction date
for each payment or receipt of advance consideration.

Group companies

On consolidation. the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into Indian Rupees at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the reporting date and their statements of profit and loss are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. For practical reasons, the group uses an average rate to translate income and expense items. if the average
rate approximates the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. The exchange differences arising on translation for
consolidation are recognised in OCI. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of OCI relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognised in profit and loss.
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Notes to consolidated financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in Rs. million, unless otherwise stated)

(¢) Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments such as derivative instruments and investments (other than investment in
subsidiaries and associates) at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

(i) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
(ii) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in
its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy. described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

(1) Level | — inputs are quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date

(ii) Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

(iii) Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis. the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Fair-value related disclosures for financial instruments and non-financial assets that are measured at fair value or where fair
values are disclosed. are summarised in the following notes:

(1) Disclosure for fair valuation methods. significant estimates and judgements - note 2.4, 5 and 48
(ii) Financial Instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) - note 4b, 6a. 6b. 7. 8. 13. 14, 15, 16, 17; 22, 23,
26b and 27

(d) Revenue recognition

Revenue from contract with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
The Group has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the goods
or services before transferring them to the customer.

To recognize revenues, the Group applies the following five- step approach:
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e Identify the contract with a customer:

e Identify the performance obligation in the contract:

e Determine the transaction price:

e Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and
e Recognise revenues when a performance obligation is satisfied.

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is measured at the transaction price that the Group receives or expects to receive as consideration for goods supplied
and services rendered. net of returns and estimates of variable consideration such as discounts to customers.

The Group considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a
portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated if any. In determining the transaction price for the sale of goods. the
Group considers the effects of variable consideration. the existence of significant financing components, noncash
consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

Goods and Services Tax (GST) is not received by the Group in its own account. Rather. it is collected on value added to
commodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

e Variable consideration:

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount. the Group estimates the amount of consideration to
which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The variable consideration is
estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved. The contracts for the sale of goods provide with the customers with a right
to return. cash discounts, and volume rebates/trade incentives. The rights of return, cash discount and volume
rebates/trade incentives give rise to variable consideration.

e Volume rebates

The Group gives volume rebates/trade incentives to customers once the quantity of products purchased during the
period exceeds a threshold specified in the contract. Rebates are offset against amounts payable by the customer. The
Group applies the most likely amount method or the expected value method to estimate the variable consideration in
the contract. The selected method that best predicts the amount of variable consideration is primarily driven by the
number of volume thresholds contained in the contract. The most likely amount is used for those contracts with a single
volume threshold, while the expected value method is used for those with more than one volume threshold. The Group
then applies the requirements on constraining estimates in order to determine the amount of variable consideration that
can be included in the transaction price and recognised as revenue. A refund liability for the expected future rebates
(i.e.. the amount not included in the transaction price).

(i) Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Group
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due. a
contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration.

Trade receivables
A receivable represents the Group’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time
is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in section 2.3(p)
Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.
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Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration
(or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. [f a customer pays consideration before the Group transfers goods
or services to the customer. a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is
carlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract.

(iii) Refund liabilities

A refund liability is recognised for the obligation to refund some or all of the consideration received (or receivable) from the
customer and is measured at the amount the Group ultimately expects it will have to return to the customer. The Group
updates its estimates of refund liabilities (and the corresponding change in the transaction price) at the end of each reporting
period. Refer to above accounting policy on variable consideration.

(iv) Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR).
EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period. where appropriate. to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost
of a financial liability. When calculating EIR. the Group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual
terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income
in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

(v) Dividend Income

Revenue is recognised when the Group's right to receive the payment is established. which is generally when shareholders
approve the dividend.

(vi) Export incentives income

Export incentives under various schemes notified by government are accounted for in the year of exports based on eligibility
and when there is no uncertainty in receiving the same.

(vii) Government grant

The Group may receive government grants that require compliance with certain conditions related to the Group’s operating
activities or are provided to the Group by way of financial assistance on the basis of certain qualifying criteria.

Accordingly, government grants:

(a) related to or used for assets. are deducted from the carrying amount of the asset.

(b) related to incurring specific expenditures are taken to the statement of profit and loss on the same basis and in the
same periods as the expenditures incurred.

(¢) by way of financial assistance on the basis of certain qualifying criteria are recognised as they become receivable.

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received upon the Group
complying with the conditions attached to the grant. Income from such grants is recognised on a systematic basis over the
periods to which they relate. In the unlikely event that a grant previously recognised is ultimately not received. it is treated
as a change in estimate and the amount cumulatively recognised is expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(e) Income-tax

Current income tax




Orkla India Limited (formerly Orkla India Private Limited and MTR Foods Private Limited)
CIN: U15136KA1996PLC021007

Notes to consolidated financial statement for the year ended March 31,2025

(All amounts are in Rs. million, unless otherwise stated)

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted. at the
reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized either in other comprehensive income or
in equity. in correlation to the underlying transaction. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. except:

e  When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and. at the time of the transaction. affects neither the accounting profit or taxable profit or
loss.

e In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with the investments in subsidiaries. associates and interests in
joint venture, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and if it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences. the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences. and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised. except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and. at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss.

e In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in
joint ventures. deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient future taxable income will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized
or liability is settled. based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized either in other comprehensive income or in
equity. in correlation to the underlying transaction.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination. but not satisfying the criteria for separate recognition at that date,
are recognised subsequently if new information about facts and circumstances change. Acquired deferred tax benefits
recognised within the measurement period reduce goodwill related to that acquisition if they result from new information
obtained about facts and circumstances existing at the acquisition date.
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The Group offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Goods and Services Tax (GST) paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST paid. except:

i) When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority. in which case.
the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable

ii) When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from. or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables
in the balance sheet.

() Property, plant and equipment

On transition to Ind AS. the Group had elected to continue with the carrying value of all its property, plant and equipment
recognised as at April 1, 2019 measured as per the Indian GAAP and use that carrying value as deemed cost of property.
plant and equipment.

Property. plant and equipment are stated at cost. net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. ifany.
Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss. if any. The cost comprises of purchase price,
taxes, duties, freight and other incidental expenses directly attributable and related to acquisition and installation of the
concerned assets and are further adjusted by the amount of tax credit availed wherever applicable. When significant parts of
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals. the Group depreciates them separately based on their specific
useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed. its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in
statement of profit and loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its
use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items.

The Group identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separately, if the component/ part has a cost
which is significant to the total cost of the asset and has useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining
asset.

An item of property. plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gains or losses arising from derecognition of the
assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

The assets' residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed and adjusted prospectively if appropriate. at
the end of each reporting period.

Depreciation on Property. plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates arrived at based on the
useful lives estimated by the management except in case of leasehold improvements.

Purticalars Useful life usefl by the
management (in years)
Plant and machinery ‘ 2-15

| Office equipment/ Computers 3-6
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Paiticaiars Useful life used by the
management (in years)
Factory buildings 30
Electrical fittings 10
Furniture and fixtures 10
Vehicles 4-8
| Windmills 22

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the primary period of the lease. or useful life. whichever is lower. on a straight-
line basis.

In respect of assets acquired which have been previously used by another party, depreciation is provided over the remaining
useful lives of such assets determined within their overall useful lives as stated above.

The Group. based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates certain items of
property. plant and equipment over estimated useful lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule 1
to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair
approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

(g) Non-current assets held for sale

The Group classifies non-current assets as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sale
rather than through continuing use.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell. Costs to sell are the incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs and income
tax expense.

The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable. and the asset is available
for immediate sale in its present condition. Actions required to complete the sale/ distribution should indicate that it is
unlikely that significant changes to the sale will be made or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn. Management must
be committed to the sale and the sale expected within one year from the date of classification. For these purposes. sale
transactions include exchanges of non-current assets for other non-current assets when the exchange has commercial
substance. The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded met only when the assets is available for immediate sale in
its present condition, subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such assets. its sale is highly probable:
and it will genuinely be sold. not abandoned. The Group treats sale of the asset to be highly probable when:
e The appropriate level of management is committed to a plan to sell the asset,
e  Anactive programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan has been initiated (if applicable).
e The asset is being actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in relation to its current fair value.
e  The sale is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification,
and
e Actions required to complete the plan indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will be made or
that the plan will be withdrawn.

Property. plant and equipment and intangible are not depreciated. or amortised assets once classified as held for sale.
Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately from other items in the balance sheet.

(h) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried
at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles. excluding
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capitalised development costs. are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in
which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is
an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or
the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the
amortisation period or method, as appropriate. and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense
on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of
carrying value of another asset.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually. either individually or
at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite
life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is

derecognised.

A summary of amortisation policies applied to the Group’s intangible assets is as below:

Assets Useful life (in years)
Software 3 years
Trademarks Indefinite
Distribution network 4 years
Recipes 10 years

(i) Business combination and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the
aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs
are recognised in Consolidated Financial Statements of Profit and Loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired. and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition date
fair values. For this purpose. the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they
are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
is not probable. However, certain assets and liabilities i.e. deferred tax assets or liabilities. assets or liabilities related to
employee benefit arrangements. liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment arrangements and assets or
disposal groups that are classified as held for sale. acquired or assumed in a business combination are measured as per the
applicable Ind AS.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms. economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within the scope of Ind AS 109 Financial
Instruments. is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss in accordance with Ind AS 109.
If the contingent consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate Ind
AS and shall be recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured at
subsequent reporting dates and subsequent its settlement is accounted for within equity. |
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If the business combination is achieved in stages. any previously held equity interest is re-measured at its acquisition date
fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or OCI. as appropriate.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held. over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred. the Group re-
assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the
procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess
of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred. then the gain is recognised in OCI and
accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises
the gain directly in equity as capital reserve. without routing the same through OCL.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment
testing. goodwill acquired in a business combination is. from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually. or more frequently when
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its
carrying amount. the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional
amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the measurement period. or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to
reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have
affected the amounts recognized at that date. These adjustments are called as measurement period adjustments. The
measurement period does not exceed one year from the acquisition date.

(j) Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is. or contains. a lease. That is. if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee
The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases. except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right

to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost. less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. and adjusted for
any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised.
initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located. and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of
the assets. as follows:
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‘ Category of assets { Estimated useful life J
| Building 2 to 25 years 4]

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option. depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject
to impairment.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease. the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable. variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under
residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for terminating the lease. if the lease term reflects the Group exercising
the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless
they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments. the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition. the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a modification. a change in the lease term. a change in the lease
payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments)
or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The standard provides specific transition requirements and practical expedients. which have been applied by the Group as
follows:

e Applied the short-term leases exemptions to leases with lease term that ends within 12 months of the date of initial
application
e  Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application.

(k) Inventories
Inventories are valued as follows:

Raw materials. packing materials and stores. Lower of cost and net realizable value. However, materials and

spares and consumables other items held for use in the production of inventories are not
written down below cost if the finished products in which they will
be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost is
determined on a weighted average basis. Stores and spares which
do not meet the definition of property. plant and equipment are
accounted as inventories.

Work-in-progress & finished goods including Lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of Work in progress
traded goods and finished goods includes direct materials and labour and a
proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating
capacity. Cost of traded goods includes cost of purchase and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Cost is determined on a weighted average basi
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Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business. less estimated costs of completion
and estimated costs necessary to make the sale

() Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date. whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication
exists. or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required. the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and
its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount. the asset'is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a post-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair
value less costs of disposal. recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified. an
appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for
publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for
each of the Group’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally
cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows
after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts. the Group
extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an
increasing rate can be justified. In any case. this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the
products. industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

For assets excluding goodwill. an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists. the Group estimates the
asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change
in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The
reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined. net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

(m) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event. it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed,
for example. under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of
any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects. when
appropriate. the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used. the increase in the provision due to the passage of

time is recognized as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a present obligation that is not
recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent
liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured
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Contingent liabilities recognised in a business combination

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is initially measured at its fair value. Subsequently. it is measured
at the higher of the amount that would be recognised in accordance with the requirements for provisions above or the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the requirements for
revenue recognition.

(n) Retirement and other employee benefits
Defined contribution plan:

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Group has no obligation. other than
the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Group recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as
an expense. when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received
before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid. the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a
liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for
services received before the balance sheet date. then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will
lead to. for example. a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Defined benefit plan:

The Group operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is
determined using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses. the effect of the asset ceiling. excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods.

Past service costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss on the earlier of:
- The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
- The date that the Group recognizes related restructuring costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group recognizes the
following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an employee benefits expense in the statement of profit and loss:

- Service costs comprising current service costs. past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine
settlements: and
- Interest expense and Income

Leave Encashment / compensated absences:

Accumulated leave. which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months. is treated as short-term employee benefit.
The Group measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the
unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The Group treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit
for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using
the projected unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial gain/loss are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss
and are not deferred.

The Group presents the entire leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an upcenditional right to
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(0) Share based payments

Employees of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for cash payments based on equity instruments (equity settled transactions) of the ultimate holding company.
The Group classifies a share-based payment transaction as equity settled when it receives goods or services as consideration
for its own equity instruments or receives goods or services but has no obligation to settle the transaction with the supplier.

Further. it classifies a share-based payment transaction as cash settled if it acquires the goods or services by incurring a
liability to transfer cash or other assets to the supplier of those goods or services for amounts that are based on the price of
its own equity instruments or that of another group entity.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an appropriate
valuation model. The cost is recognised together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment reserves in equity or
capital contribution from parent depending on which entity is settling the transaction. The costs are recognised. over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service conditions
have not been met. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vested irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are
satisfied.

(p) Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets include Investments. Trade Receivables. Advances, Security Deposits, Cash and Cash equivalents. Such
assets are initially recognised at fair value or transaction price, as applicable, when the Group becomes party to contractual
obligations. The transaction price includes transaction costs unless the asset is being valued through Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

e  Debt instruments at amortised cost

e  Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

e Debt instruments. derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
e Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instrument at FVTOCI

A -debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets,
and
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Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value.
Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However. the Group recognizes interest
income. impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to P&L.
Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A “debt instrument” is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the EIR method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the
profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade
and other receivables. For more information on receivables. refer to note 13.

Equity investments

All equity investments other than investment in subsidiaries. associates and joint ventures in scope of Ind AS 109 are
measured at fair value Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the
Group may make an irrevocable election to present in OCI subsequent changes in the fair value. The Group makes such
election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI. then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding
dividends. are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCl to statement of profit and loss, even on
sale of investment. However. the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable. a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group’s balance sheet) when:

e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired. or

e The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement: and either (a) the Group -
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset. or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset. nor transferred control of the asset. the Group continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case. the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets
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The Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial
assets measured at amortised cost.

The Group follows “simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables and other
receivable. The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather. it
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines that whether there has
been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly. 12-month
ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If. ina
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition. then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss. This
amount is reflected under the head -other expenses’ in the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation for
various financial instruments is described below:

e  Financial assets measured as at amortised cost. trade and other receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e..asan
integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount.
Until the asset meets write-off criteria. the Group does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

e Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance sheet, i.e. as a
liability.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition. as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings. payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and. in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables. including payable to employees and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR). The effective
interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments over the expected life of the
financial liability or a shorter period. where appropriate. to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified. such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement
of profit and loss.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Group determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition. no
jon- ial assets which
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are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets.
Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Group’s senior management determines change in the
business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Group’s operations. Such changes are
evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Group either begins or ceases to perform an
activity that is significant to its operations. If the Group reclassifies financial assets. it applies the reclassification
prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the
change in business model. The Group does not restate any previously recognised gains. losses (including impairment gains
or losses) or interest.

The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for:

Original classification Revised classification Accounting treatment
Amortised Cost FVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference
between previous amortized cost and fair value is
: recognised in P&L

FVTPL Amortised Cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new gross
carrying amount. EIR is calculated based on the new gross
| carrying amount

Amortised Cost FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference
between previous amortized cost and fair value is
recognised in OCL. No change in EIR due to
reclassification.
| FVOCI Amortised Cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new
‘ amortised cost carrying amount. However cumulative gain

or loss in OCI is adjusted against fair value. Consequently.

’ the asset is measured as if it had always been measured at
amortised cost.

FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new
, carrying amount. No other adjustment is required.
FVTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value. Cumulative

gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified to
P&L at the reclassification date. |

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

(q) Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments. such as forward currency contracts, to hedge its foreign currency risks.
Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive
and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit and loss,
except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges. which is recognised in OCI and later reclassified to the statement of
profit and loss when the hedge item affects the statement of profit and loss or treated as basis adjustment, if a hedged forecast
transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability.

(r) Segment accounting policies
Identification of segments:

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker. The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) is the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) who makes ic_decisions
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Refer note 45 for segment information presented.

Inter-segment transfer:
The Group generally accounts for inter-segment sales at arm’s length basis in a manner similar to transactions with third

parties.

Segment policies:
The Group prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting

the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group as a whole.
(s) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holders of parent company (after
deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the period.

The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue,
bonus element in a rights issue. share split. and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of
equity shares outstanding. without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders
of the parent company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

(t) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet and for the purpose of the statement of cash flows comprise cash on hand
and cash at bank including fixed deposits with original maturity period of three months.

For the purpose of the Consolidated Financial Statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above. net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Group’s
cash management.

(u) Cash dividend

The Group recognises a liability to pay dividend to equity holders of the parent when the distribution is authorised and the
distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Group. As per the corporate laws in India. a distribution is authorised when
it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

(v) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent
regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs

2.4 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities. accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.
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Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date. that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below. The Group’s assumptions and estimates are based on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur.

(a) Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The Group operates a defined benefit gratuity plan under the Payment of Gratuity Act. 1972 in India, which is a defined
benefit obligation. The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined
using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate. future salary increases and mortality rates.
Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in
India. the management considers the interest rates of government bonds where remaining maturity of such bond correspond
to expected term of defined benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in
response to demographic changes. The estimate of future salary increases is based on expected future inflation rates,
seniority. promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in note 40.
(b) Leases

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate
(IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar
term. and with a similar security. the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment.

The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is required to make
certain entity-specific estimates.

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option
to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised. or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease. if it
is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Group applies judgement in
evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers
all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the
commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is
within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g.. construction
of significant leasehold improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset).

The management while evaluating lease periods have not considered the renewal periods of real estate leases as the
management is not reasonably certain of exercising the renewal options available as on the balance sheet date. Further. the
management is reasonably certain of not exercising any termination options available as part of the contract as on the balance
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(¢) Provision for sales return

The Group provides for sales return on damaged goods based on trend of previous years. The Group reviews the trend at
regular intervals to ensure the applicability of the same in the changing scenario and based on the management's assessment
of market conditions.

(d) Estimating variable consideration for discount, volume rebates and trade incentives

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received/receivable from its customers and in determining the
transaction price for the sale of products. the Group considers the effects of various factors such as volume-based discounts,
rebates and other promotion incentives schemes (“trade schemes’) provided to the customers. At year end, amounts for trade
schemes that have been incurred and not yet provided to the customers are estimated and accrued.

In estimating the variable consideration towards discounts, volume rebates and trade incentives taking into consideration the
terms of the volume thresholds and expected likely payout based on historical experience, current trend and future
expectations of customers meeting the thresholds.

Before including any amount of variable consideration in the transaction price. the Group considers whether the amount of
variable consideration is constrained. The Group determined that the estimates of variable consideration are not constrained
based on its historical experience. business forecast and the current economic conditions. In addition. the uncertainty on the
variable consideration will be resolved within a short time frame.

(e) Provision for inventories

The Group has a defined policy for provision on inventory sub-categorised into raw materials., packing materials and
finished goods. The Group provides provision based on the policy. expired, obsolete and slow-moving inventory.

(f) Useful life of assets considered for depreciation of property, plant and equipment

The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life
and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of Group’s assets are determined
by management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed at each financial year end. The useful lives are based on
technical advice, prior asset usage experience and the risk of technological obsolescence.

(g) Impairment allowance for doubtful debts

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowances for
estimated irrecoverable amounts. Under Ind AS. impairment allowance has been determined based on Expected Credit
Loss (ECL) model. Estimated irrecoverable amounts are based on the ageing of the receivable balance and historical
experience. Individual trade receivables are written off if the same are not collectible. Further details about impairment
allowance are given in note 49.

(h) Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or Cash-Generating Unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable amount.
which is higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation
is based on available data from binding sales transactions. conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing off the asset. The value in use calculation is based on Discounted Cash
Flow (DCF) model. The cash flows are derived from the forecast for the next five years. The forecast does not include
restructuring activities that the Group is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s
performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model
as well as the expected future cash inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. These estj are most
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relevant to goodwill recognised by the Group. The key assumptions used to determine the value in use for the different
CGUs, are disclosed and further explained in note 5.

(i) Share based payments

Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model.
which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate
inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option. volatility and dividend yield and making
assumptions about them. For the measurement of the fair value of equity-settled transactions with employees at the grant
date. the Group uses Black and Scholes model. The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-based
payment transactions are disclosed in note 44.

(j) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on
quoted prices in active markets. their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs
to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible. a degree of judgement is
required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk. credit risk and
volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. See note
48 for further disclosures.

2.5 Standards notified but not effective

There are no standards that are notified and not yet effective as on the date.
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Orkla India Limited (formerly known as Orkla India Private Limited and M TR Foods Private Limited)
CIN: UISI36KA1996PLC021007

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

A amownts are m RBs. muillion, unless stated otherwise

+b

(

Right-of-use assets and lease liabil

Right-of-use assets (ROU)

As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Opening balance 4496 4620
Additions 35.0 71.8
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (refer note 37) (82.4) (84.2)
Deletions (6.6) -
Adjustment due to modification [refer note (1) below]| (10) -
Closing balance 394.6 449.6
I.ease liabilities
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Opening balance 594 8 398 9
Additions 327 663
Interest expense on lease habihties (refer note 36) 544 §5.6
Pavments (129 .0) (126.2)
Deletions (71.7) 2
Adjustment due to modification [refer note (1) below| (1.2} 5
(losing balance 544.0 594.8
Note :

The modification adjustment 1s on account of change in the lease term or change n the lease payments accordingly the lease hability 1s re-measured as on date of modification and the difference
between the lease liability as on date of modification and the re-measured lease liability as per above is adjusted to the carrying amount of ROU

As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Non-current 452.2 514 8
Current 918 80 0
Year ended Year ended

T'he following are the amounts recognised in profit and loss : March 31,2025 March 31,2024

Gam on termination modification of right-of-use assets (refer note 31) 14 -
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets (refer note 37) 824 842
Interest expense on lease labilities (refer note 36) 344 55.6
Expense relating to short-term leases (included i other expenses & Staff welfare) 88 1 1013
03 3.3

Expense relating to leases of low value assets ( mcluded m other expenses)

Also refer note 42(a) for additional disclosure on lease arrangements

This space is intentionally left blank




Orkla India Limited (formerly known as Orkla India Private Limited and MTR Foods Private Limited)
CIN: UISI36KA1996PLC021007

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Al amonnis are i By million, unless stated otherwise)

3 Goodwill and other intangible assets

Other intangible assets

Goodwill Trademarks and Distribution Recipes Computer Total
|refer note (i) below] Brands [refer note (i) Network software
below]

At April 1, 2023 10,118.6 5,731.1 368.0 0.5 86.9 6,186.5
\dditions - - - - 1057 1057
Disposals - - - - =
At March 31, 2024 10,118.6 57311 368.0 192.6 6,292.2
Additions N 8 N ; T 3.
Disposals [refer note(1)] (2.5 - - - -
At March 31, 2025 10,116.1 5.731.1 368.0 0.5 206.3 6,305.9
Amortisation
At April 1, 2023 - 0.9 184.0 0.3 717 256.9
Amortisation for the vear (refer note 37) - 00 92.0 0.0 225 1145
Disposals - - - - - -
At March 31, 2024 - 0.9 276.0 0.3 94.2 371.4
Amortisation for the vear (refer note 37) - 00 920 00 327 124.2
Disposals - - - - - -
At March 31, 2025 - 0.9 368.0 0.3 126.4 495.6
Net carrying value as at:
At March 31, 2024 10,118.6 5,730.2 92.0 0.2 98.4 5,920.8
At March 31, 2025 10,116.1 5,730.2 - 0.2 79.9 5,810.3

Note:

(1) Goodwill primanly includes Rs 9.857 3 and Rs 261 3 on acquisition of ECPL (Eastern) and Rasoi respectively. During the year ended March 31. 2025, the Company has charged off goodwill
of Rs 2 3 pertaining to subsidiary company. Fastern Food Speciality Formulations Private Limited (EFSF) which w

s strike off with effect from February 25. 2025

Further. the Group has recognised Trademarks & Brands

geregating Rs. 5.730 0 on acquisition of ECPL. Trademarks and Brands are not amortised and are considered to have indefimte hife. on
account of the history of operations n ECPL and their estabhished brands in the market These intangible assets and goodwill are tested for impairment on an annual basis in accordance with the
applicable accounting standards. For the purposes of impairment. Goodwill and Trademarks & Brands recogmsed on acquisition of ECPL has been allocated to Eastern CGU and further. Goodwill
on acquisition of Rasor has been allocated to Rasor CcGu

Eastern CGL

The recoverable amount of Eastern CGU has been determined based on a value mn use caleulation considering the cash flow projections from financial budgets approved by the Management for the
financial vears ending March 31, 2026 to March 31. 2030 which covers a five-vear pertod For the purposes of impairment testing. the post-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections for the
current financial vear is 12 0% (March 31, 2024 12.0%) and cash flows bevond the five-vear period are extrapolated considering a growth rate of 5 0% (March 31.2024° 5.0%). w hich 1s sumilar to
the long-term average growth rate for the industry

Rasoi (Gl

I'he recoverable amount of the Rasor CGU has been determined based on a value in use calculation considering the cash flow projections from financial budgets approved by the Management for
the financial vears ending March 31. 2026 to March 31, 2030 which covers a five-year period. For the purposes of impairment testing. the post-tax discount rate apphed to cash flow projections for
the current financial vear is 23 0% (March 31. 2024 15.0%) and cash flows bevond the five-year period are extrapolated considerng a growth rate of 5.0% (March 31.2024- 5 0%). w hich 1s similar
to the long-term average growth rate for the industry

Key assumptions used for value in use calculations and sensitivity to changes in assumptions

I'he calculation of value m use is most sensitive to the following assumptions
a Discount rates
b Growth rates used 1o extrapolate cash flows beyond the forecast pertod

Discount rates - Discount rates represent the current market assessment of the risks specific to each CGU. taking into consideration the time value of money and individual nisks of the underlymg
assets that have not been incorporated in the cash flow estimates. The discount rate caleulation is based on the specific circumstances of the Group and its operating segments and 1s derived from its
weighted average cost of capital (WACC) The WACC takes 1nto account both debt and equity. The cost of equity is derived from the expected return on investment by the Group’s mvestors The
cost of debt 1s based on the interest-bearing borrowings the Group 1s obliged to service Segment-specific risk 1s mcorporated by applying individual beta factors The beta factors are evaluated
annually based on publicly available market data

Growth rate - In assessing the impairment of our CGUs. we have applied a growth rate of 5% to extrapolate the cash flows. This rate reflects both the segment's historical performance and our
expectations for sustamable future growth in a competitive market. The growth rate 1s integral to the discounted cash flow models. which inform the recoverable amount of the CGUs agamst their
carnving values

Based on the above assessment. no impairment has been recogmsed durmg the yvear ended March 31. 2025 (March 31. 2024 Nil) Further, the Group has also performed sensitivity analysis around

the key assumptions and has concluded that there are no reasonably possible changes to key assumptions that would cause the carrving amount of the aforesaid assets to exceed their recoverable
values

T'us space 1s tentionally left blank




Orkla India Limited (formerly known as Orkla India Private Limited and VMI'TR Foods Private Limited)
CIN: U15136KA1996PLC0O21007

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31,2025

(A amounts are m Ry million, unless stated otherwise)

6 Investments
6a Non-current investments

Investment in equity instruments

In associate (accounted under equity method):
Unquoted
4271 (March 31, 2024 4.271) Equity shares of Rs 10 (March 31. 2024 Rs 10) each fully paid-up n Pot Ful India Private Limited

|refer note 41(1)]

In joint venture (accounted under equity method):
Unquoted

2500 (March 31. 2024 2.500) equity shares of UAE Dirhams 1.000 (March 31. 2024 UAE Dirhams 1.000) each
fully pard-up in Eastern Condiments Middle East & North Africa FZC. UAE[refer note 41(1)]

Less Provision for impairment

In others (at fair value through other comprehensive income):

Unquoted
1,403 (March 31. 2024 1.403) equity shares of Rs 10 (March 31. 2024 Rs 10) cach fully paid-up i Firmroots Private Linuted [refer
note (1) below]|

Less Provision for impairment

37.748 (March 31. 2024 0) equity shares of Rs 10 (March 31, 2024 0) cach fully paid in Clean Max Aurora Private | imited [refer

note (1) below]|

Less Provision for impairment

750 (March 31. 2024 750) equity shares of Rs 10 (March 31. 2024 Rs 10) each fully paid up m Vishweshwar Sahakari Bank Ltd

6b Current Investments
Investments in Mutual Funds (at fair value through profit or loss account)
Quoted

Aditva Birla Sun Life Liquid Fund
210,096 units (March 31, 2024 3.828 858 units)

1CICT Prudential Liquid Fund
77.768 umts (March 31,2024 4.142.242 units)

Axis Money Market Fund

625,109 umits (March 31, 2024 0 umts)

Axis Liguid Fund
43,463 umits (March 31, 2024 0 units)

Baroda B\P Paribas Liquid Fund

9,600 units (March 31. 2024 0 units)

Baroda B\P Paribas Ultra Short Duration Fund

27.539 units (March 31. 2024 0 units)

Kotak Liquid Fund
2472 umits (March 31. 2024 0 units)

HSBC Liquid Fund
59.225 units (March 31, 2024 0 units)

Frankhin Templeton Liguid Fund
27.942 units (March 31. 2024 0 umits)

sate book value and market value of quoted investments

\ugregate book value of unquoted mvestments

\uuregate amount of imparment n value of investments

0=

Asat As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
1862 1500
136.2 150.0
1619 1489
(200) (200)
141.9 128.9
278.1 2789
39 R
(39) (39)
246 g
(24 6) z
0o 00
0.0 0.0
881 1.491 4
299 1.480 1
8851 ¢
1253 -
287 -
423 =
130 5
15331 -
108 9
1.474.3 2,971.5
14743 29715
3266 3029
485 23'9




Orkla India Limited (formerly known as Orkla India Private Limited and VITR Foods Private Limited)
CIN: U15136KA1996PLC021007

Notes to the ¢ lidated fi cial st for the year ended March 31,2025
(A amounis are m Rs amlhon, wnless stated othensise)
Note:

(1) On October 13, 2017. the Group had acquired 8.065 shares of Firmroots Private Limited (FPL) at fair value of Rs 4.340 per share which comprise of 434 shareholdmg During the vear ended March 31, 2020, FPL
had converted its Series A CCPS nto equity shares. reducing the Group's shareholding to 33% and the Group had also recognised an impairment loss of Rs 1.513 per share due to performance of FPL Further
Group sold 6,662 shares of FPL at a fair value of Rs 2.627 per share. contributing to a loss of Rs 200 per share 1n the financial vear ended March 31. 2021 The aforesaid impairment loss was set off from the

impairment allowance created by the Company during the financial year 2019-20

Post the sale made by the Group. the balance shareholding was 5 54%0 w hich resulted mto FPL ceasing to be an associate w e f December 24. 2020 Accordingly. investments mn FPL were remeasured at fair value
through other comprehensive income in accordance with Ind AS 109 Management has assessed the fair value of the investments m FPL as at March 31, 2025 to be N1l (March 31,2024 N\al)

(11) Pursuant to requirements of Electricity Act. the Group has subscribed for 37.748 equity shares of Rs 10 each of Clean Max Aurora Private Limited (Clean Max) for a purchase consideration of Rs 246
(Subscription Price) during the year ended March 31. 2025 Further. pursuant to Energy Supply Agreement. the Group has agreed to purchase total solar power to be generated from solar plant having mstalled
capacity 1e. 66 MWp As per the Shareholders” Agreement (SHA) between the Group and Clean Max. the Group has an option to sell back the aforesaid equity shares at fair market value The Group has
irrevocably elected to measure fair value changes in the aforesaid equity nstruments through other comprehensive mcome (FVTOCH Management has assessed the fair value of nvestment in Clean Max as at
March 31. 2025 to be Nil and accordingly. recognised an impairment loss of Rs 246

This space 1s ntentionally left blank>




Orkla India Limited (formerly known as Orkla India Private Limited and VTR Foods Private Limited)
CIN: U15136KA1996PLC021007

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31,2025

(Al amounts are in Rs. million, unless stated otherwise)

7 Non-current - loans

At amortised cost

Loans to employees

Sub-classification of loans:

Loan recevables considered good- unsecured

8 Other non-current financial assets

At amortised cost

Unsecured - considered good

Marain money deposits with bank [refer note (1) below]
Security deposit for lease premises

Other deposits*

* Majorly includes electricty deposits
Note:

(1) Margin money deposits are intended to secure the bank guarantee and letter of credit facility obtained by the Group

9 Other non-current assets

Unsecured - considered good

Capital advances

Prepaid expenses

Balances with statutory ' government authorities

10 Income tax assets (net)

Income tax assets (net of provisions)

Deferred tax assets / (liability) (net)

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax habihity

Deferred tax relates to the following

Property. plant and equipment & intangibles difference i written down value as per Companies
Act. 2013 and as per Income tax Act, 1961

Employee retirement benefit expenditure and bonus payable charged to the statement of profit
and loss account but allowed for tax purposes on payment basis

Impact of ROU assets
Impact of lease habihties

Other timing differences*

As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
46 6l
4.6 6.1
46 61
4.6 6.1
As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
01 01
448 368
318 3219
76.7 69.8
As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
91 520
44 57
22.3 355
358 93.2
As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
1.148 8 1,023 5
1,148.8 1,023.5
As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
- 19
1,035 6 906 0
(1,035.6) (904.1)
Consolidated balance sheet Consolidated statement of profit and loss and
As at As at For year ended For year ended
March 31,2025 March 31,2024 March 31,2025 March 31,2024
(1,196 3) (1,068 2) (1281) 1854
892 676 216 102
(99 3) (113 1) 138 (14)
1369 1497 (128) 07
339 599 (26 0) (98)
(1,035.6) (904.1) (131.5) 183.7

* Mayorly ncludes timing differences due to impairment allowance for expected credit loss, provision for litigation, fair value gamn on financial instruments

Ths space 1s intentionally left blank>




Orkla India Limited (formerly known as Orkla India Private Limited and M'TR Foods Private Limited)
CIN: U15136KA1996PLCO21007

Notes to the ¢ lidated fi ial st s for the year ended March 31,2025

o amonnts are m Ry anllion, unless stated vtherwise

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (net)

As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Balance at the beginning of the vear (904 1) (720 4)
Tax income (expense) during the vear recognised in profit or loss (1364) (1617)
Tax mcome (expense) during the vear recognised in OCI 49 {22:0)
Balance at the end of the year (1,035.6) (904.1)
12 Inventories
As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
At lower of cost and net realisable value
Raw matenals 1.592:6 15235
Packing matenials 2103 1603
Work-in-progress 3528 4035 6
Fimished goods [meludes goods-m-transit for Rs 40 2 (March 31. 2024 Rs 33 5)] 688 4 7092
Stock-in-trade 1301 839
Stores. spares and consumables 1133 869
3.087.5 2,969.4
\s at March 31,2025 Rs 55 2 (March 31.2024 Rs 88) was recognised as provision towards slow and non moving inventories
13 Trade receivables
As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
I'rade receivables include:
Recevable from others 1,626 2 1.6858
1,626.2 1,685.8

Break-up for security details:

Trade receivables considered good - unsecured 1.6 1.6858
I'rade receivables - which have significant increase in credit risk 176
Trade receivables - credit impaired .1 231
1,659.8 1,756.5
Less Allowance for expected credit loss (2015 (707)
1,638.7 1,685.8
I'rade receivables ageing schedule
Outstanding for the following periods from the due date of payment
& Current but Less than6 6 months - | year 1-2 years 2-3years  More than 3 years Total
\s at March 31,2025 Y = L )
not due months
Undisputed trade recenvables - considered zood 1.142.0 4748 35 54 05 - 1.6262
Undisputed trade receivables - which have sigmificant 2 92 12 - - 125
increase in credit risk
Undisputed trade recervables - credit impaired - - - 40 o2 23 71
Disputed trade recervables - considered good - - - - - - -
Disputed trade recemvables - which have significant - - - - - - -
increase in credit risk
Disputed trade receivables - credit imparred - - - - 15 |
Total 1,144.1 484.0 4.7 9.9 0.7 3.8 1,647.3
Outstanding for the following periods from the due date of payment
As at March 31,2024 Current but Less than 6 6 months - | year 1-2 years 2-3 years  More than 3 years Total
not due iginths
| ndisputed trade recervables - considered good 6152 9927 642 74 63 - 16858
Undisputed trade recenvables - which have sigmificant - 99 377 - - - 476
increase in credit risk
Undisputed trade recenvables - credit imparred - - - 43 23 116 184
Disputed trade receivables - considered good - - - -
Disputed trade recewvables - which have significant - - - - - -
mncrease n credit nisk
Disputed trade recenvables - credit impaired - - - - - 47 47
Total 615.2 1,002.6 101.9 19 8.6 16.3 1,756.5
No trade or other r wom directors or other officers of the Group either severally or jomtly with any other person
\ll rade recen .m;& sst bearing and are on terms of 0 to 60 days. except tor export sales w hich are generally on terms of 30-120 davs. however the sa Sy & based on the

™~

agreed terms Far/ol \elating to related party recenvables. refer note 47



Orkla India Limited (formerly known as Orkla India Private Limited and MTR Foods Private Limited)

CIN: U15136KA1996PLC0O21007
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31,2025
(AN amonnts are ur R, million, unless stated otherwise)

14 Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks
- On current accounts™®

Cash on hand

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31,2024

*Includes Rs 180 as at March 31,2025 (March 31, 2024 13 5) earmarked towards Corporate Soctal Responsibility (CSR)

\s at March 31. 2025. the Company had undrawn borrowing facilities of Rs. 1,415 6 (March 31, 2024

15 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

8123 3952
03 06
812.8 395.8
Rs 1.0514)
As at As at

March 31,2025

March 31,2024

Bank deposits (with original maturity of more than 3 months and of less than 12 months) 1.094 3 7500
1,094.3 750.0
Details of non-cash transactions from investing activities and changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
Non-cash changes As at
April 1 :;:j Cash flows (net) Fair value Others* March 31,2025
EpHIlitsaSe adjustments
Investing activities
Right-of-use assets 449 6 & , (550) 394 6
Non-current myestments 2789 246 (24 6) (08) 2781
Capntal advances 520 07 # (43 6) 91
Current investments 29715 (1.836 8) 392 300 4 1.4743
Total 37520 (1.811.5) 14.6 201.0 2,156.1
Financing activities
Non-current borrowings (including current maturities of non-current borrowings E - - (377) -
Lease habilines 594§ (129 0) - 782 5440
Liability on account of forward commitment (refer note 52) 360 - - - 360
Total 668.5 (129.0) - 40.5 580.0
Non-cash changes
As at o As at
Cash flows (net) Fair value Others*
P 4
April 1,2023 adjustments March 31,2024
Investing activities
Right-of-use assets 4620 # 5 (124) 4496
Non-current mvestments 2047 504 - 238 2789
Current investments 23458 4733 476 104 8 29715
Total 3,012.5 523.7 47.6 116.2 3,700.0
Financing activities
Non-current borrowings (including current maturities of non-current borrowings 39.9 (2.2) - - 377
shown under current borrowmg)
Current borrowings 3100 (3100) - & 00
Lease habihities 598 9 (126.2) - 1221 394 8
Liability on account of forward commitment (refer note 532 33802 - B (3.344 2) 360
Total 4.329.0 (438.4) - (3.222.1) 668.5

* Represents mavements in ROU. profit on sale of current investments (net). share of profit (loss) from ass
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Notes to the ¢ lidated financial st s for the year ended March 31,2025

(A amonnts are m Rs. million, unless stated otherwise)

16 Current loans
As at

March 31, 2025

As at
March 31,2024

At amortised cost

Loans to employees 244 279
[oans to related parties [refer note (1) and (11) below] & 500
244 779
Sub-classification of loans:
{nsecured. considered good 244 779
244 77.9
Notes:
(1) Loans to related parties comprise of the following
Pot Ful India Private Limited (Associate) = 500
- 500

Maximum amount outstanding during the vear

(11) The Group has given a loan to Pot Ful India Private [ imited for its principal business activities One of the directors of the associate pledged his equity shares as security The loan has been completely repaid

during the vear ended March 31. 2023

17 Other current financial assets
As at

March 31,2025

As at
March 31,2024

At amortised cost
Unsecured - considered good
Bank deposits (having origimal maturity of maore than 3 months and remaining maturity of less than 12 months)

1,000 0O

Deposit with financial institutions 268 4 2500
Margin money deposits with banks [refer note (1)] 19 3
Interest accrued on loans & deposits - 613
Secunity deposits for leased premises 165 196
Advance to employees 16 04
Insurance claim recervable [refer note (11)] 00 3052
Incentive recervable 6037 3998
Recervables from spices board [refer note ()] 338 358
Other recervables® 511 150
At fair value through profit an loss
Derivative asset (mark-to-market gains on derivative contracts) 154 -
999.4 1,988.4

* Includes expenses mcurred by the Group aggregating Rs 29 for the vear ended March 31, 2025 in connection with 1ts imtial public offer (IPO) of equity shares and the same 1s recoverable from the selling

sharcholders (refer note 47) For the vear ended March 31,2024 1t maily pertains to receiv ables from contract manufacturers

Notes:
(1) Marain money deposits are intended to secure the bank guarantee and letter of credit facility obtained by the Group

(11) Pursuant to a fire mcident on October 14, 2019, certamn property, plant & equipment. mventory and other assets of the cold storage facility of Them manufacturing plant of ECPL were damaged The total loss

ags

egating Rs 289 6 on account of the aforesaid incident was lodged with the nsurance company by ECPL ECPL had recognised a minimum nsurance claim receivable of Rs 2248 The above-mentioned loss

(1o the extent of msurance receivable) and the corresponding credit arising from insurance claim receivable has been presented on a net basis in the financial statements Further. during the vear ended March 31.
2023. certain damaged tems were sold through an auction held mn the presence of insurance authorities ECPL realised Rs 21 5 from such auction sale and accordingly, the insurance claim recervable was recorded

at Rs 203 2 in the books of ECPL Post merger of ECPL with the Company. the aforesard msurance claim receivable was recorded by the Company i 1ts books of account

Durmng the vear ended March 31. 2025, the Company has written off the nsurance claim receivable from the insurance company  Further. based on the Share Purchase Agreement (SPA) entered at the time of

acquisition of ECPL, the promoters of ECPL have compensated the Company to the extent of the insurance claim receivable from the nsurance company [refer note 54(1)]

(111) It represents the amount recervable from Spices Board of India towards construction of factory building n Kota, Rajasthan on behalf of Spices Board of India The same factory building has been leased to the
Group for a period of 13 vears commencing from July 2017 The cost incurred by the Group on construction of such factory building for the same Jocation will be reimbursed by the Spices Board of India based on
the terms of the agreement Further. the Group has already received Rs 54 2 in prior years and balance amount aggregating Rs 35 8 15 pending to be recerved on account of the final clearance awaited from the

Spices Board of Indra on its mspection

18 Other current assets

As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Unsecured. considered good
Prepaid expenses 99 8 917
Recervables from LIC [refer Note (1) below] 37 240
Other recervables* 28 186
Balances with statutory/ government authorities
Unsecured. considered good 660 3 6195
Unsecured. considered doubtful 150 150
6755 6343
Less provision for doubtful balances (150) (150)
660 3 6195
Advances recoverable in kind**
Unsecured. considered good 353 493
Unsecured. considered doubttul 18 18
571 5141
Less provision for doubtful advances (18) (18)
553 393
Export incentive recenables 533 503
875.6 853.6

* Includes recervables from contract manufacturers ete
s*Includes advances wiven to suppliers towards purchase of raw materials




Orkla India Limited (formerly known as Orkla India Private Limited and MTR Foods Private Limited)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31,2025

(A amonnts are m Ry oullion, unless stared othervise)

Note:
(1) The amount represents to recenvables from Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) towards the pavment made by the Group on behalf of LIC to the employees resigned retired

Assets held for sale

Pursuant to approval of the Board of Directors 1n the current financial vear ended March 31 2025. the Company transferred the operations from the plant located at Theni, Tamil Nadu to other facilities in order to
optimise its manufacturing activities In this regard. the Company has transferred all movable assets to other manufacturmg facihties and further decided to sell the immovable assets including land and building
The Management 1s commutted to sell the aforesard land and building w \thin one vear from the balance sheet date and accordingly. the carrying value of such land and building has been classified under asset held
for sale as at March 31, 2025

As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Group of assets held for sale
Land 1639 s
Building 126:7 B
290 6 -

I'here are no habilities associated with the assets classified as held for sale

This space 15 intentionally left blank>
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025

(Al amonnts are m Ry million except share data and per share data, unless stated othenvive)

20 Share capital

As at March 31,2025

As at March 31,2024

a) Authorised share capital No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each (refer note 60)
\s at the beginning of the year 8.70.00,000 8700 3.00,00,000 SO0 0
Increase during the year* 23,00.000 230 3.70.00.000 3700
As at the end of the year $.93.00,000 893.0 8.70.00,000 870.0
Preference shares of Rs. 10 each
\s at the beginning of the year 2.20.00.000 2200 -
Increase during the year™ 3 5 2.20,00,000 2200
As at the end of the year 2.20.,00,000 220.0 2,20.00,000 220.0

* During the vear ended March 31 2025 authorised share capital has been increased on account of merger of Rasor Magic Foods (India) Private Limited and BAMS Condiments Impex Private Limited with the Company (refer

note 33) During the vear ended March 31 2024, authorised share capital has been ncreased on account of meruer of Eastern Condiments Private Limuted (ECPL) with the Company (refer note 33)

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31,2024

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Issued. subscribed and paid-up equity share capital (refer note 60)
Equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up 1.36,98 923 1370 1.33.93.359 1340
Total issued. subscribed and paid-up equity share capital 1,36,98,923 137.0 1.33,93,359 134.0
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31,2024
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Issued, subscribed and paid-up preference share capital
Redeemable Optionally Convertible Preference Shares (ROCPS) of Rs 10 each - - 304564 30
fully pard up
Total issued. subscribed and paid-up preference share capital - - 3.04.564 3.0
b) Reconciliation of the number of equity & preference shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:
As at March 31,2028 As at March 31. 2024
Equity shares of Rs.10 each No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
As at the beginning of the vear 1,33.93.359 1340 1.23.30.269 1233
\dd Issued during the vear (refer note 33) = - 7.37.526 76
Add ROCPS converted to equity Shares (refer note 53) 3.05 364 30 3,05 564 31
\s at the end of the year 1.36.98.923 137.0 1.33.93.359 134.0
As at March 31,2025 As at March 31,2024
ROCPS of Rs. 10 each No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
\s at the begimning of the year 3.05,564 30 : =
Add Issued during the vear (refer note 33) - - 6.11.128 61
| Converted to equity shares (refer note 33) (3.03 564) (30) (3.05,564) (3 1)
s at the end of the year - - 3.05.564 3.0
¢) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

(1) The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 per share Each holder of equity shares 1s entitled to one vote per share The Gri

(1) In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares would be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company. after distribution of all preferential amounts

the number of equity shares held by the shareholders

d) Terms/ rights attached to ROCPS

(1) The holders of ROCPS shall be entitled to attend all zeneral meetings of the Company and will be entitled to voting rights on an as-if converted basis Each ROCPS will carry one vote

oup declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees

The distribution wall be 1n proportion to

(11) The ROCPS shall carry a preferential right vis-a-vis the equity shares with respect to pavment of dividend and the holders of ROCPS shall be pard dividend on a non-cumulative basis @ 0 001% (zero point zero zero one

percent) or such other rate as may be approved by the hoard of the Company. provided if the board of the Company declares dividend on the equity shares, the ROCPS shall be entitled to dividend at the same rate

(111) The ROCPS shall carry a preferential nght with respect to repayment in case of a winding up of the Company. and shall be participating in the surplus funds. assets and profits of the Company if anv. which may remain on

winding up after the entire caputal has been repaid part pasu with equity shares
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Orkla India Limited (formerly known as Orkla India Private Limited and MTR Foods Private Limited)
CIN: UIS136KA1996PLC021007
Notes to the ¢ lidated financial for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Al amounts are i R million except share dara and per share data, nnless stated otherwise)

e) Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding company and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates

Out of equity shares issued by the

Group. shares held by 1ts holding company ultimate holding company and their subsidiaries: associates are as below

As at March 31,2028

As at March 31,2024

(1) Orkla Asta Pacific Pte Ltd, Singapore. the immediate holding company
equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up

(11) Orkla ASA, Norway the ultimate holding company. equity shares of Rs 10
each fully paid up

f) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Numbers Amount Numbers Amount
1,23,30,209 1233 1,23.30.209 1233
60 000 60 00l

As at March 31,2025

As at March 31,2024

Numbers

Numbers %o holding

% holdin;

Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up
Orkla Asia Pacific Pte Lid. Singapore

ROCPS of Rs.10 each fully paid up
Navas Meeran

Feroz Meeran

\s per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders

ownership of shares

@) Details of shares held by promoters

As at March 31, 2028

1.23.30.209 90 (1% 1,23.30.209
& 0 00% 1.527782
. 0.00% 152,782

members and other declaration received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest the above shareholding represent

92 06%
S0 00%
50 00%

both legal and beneficial

No of shares at the

No of shares at the end of

Change during the year %% of Total shares

2% change during the

Promoter Name Kb

beginning of the year the year year
(1) Orkla Asta Pacific Pte Ltd, Singapore, the immediate 1.23.30.209 - 1.23.30,209 90 01% =
holding company
Equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up
(11) Orkla ASA. Norway. the ulumate holding company 60 - 60 000% -
Equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up
Total 1.23.30.269 - 1.23.30,269 90.01% -

As at March 31,2024

No of shares at the

No of shares at the end of

Change during the year % of Total shares

©% change during the

Promoter Name i

beginning of the year the year vear
(1) Orkla Asia Pacific Pte Ltd. Singapore. the immediate 1.23.30,209 - 1.23.30.209 92 06% -
holding company
Equity shares of Rs 10 each fully pard up
(1) Orkla Food Ingredients AS, Norway. an associate 60 (60) # 0 00% -100%g
company
Equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up
(111) Orkla ASA. Norway. the ultimate holding company - 60 o0 000% 100 00%
Equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up
Total 1,23,30.269 - 1.23.30,209 92.06% =

h) The Company has not bought back any preference shares during the period of five vears immediately preceding the reporting date

i) The Group has not issued any bonus shares during the period of five vears immediately preceding the reporting date

j) Details of shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of five vears immediately preceding the reporting date

The Company has issued 757,526 equity shares and 611,128 ROCPS during the year ended March 312024 for consid
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Al amonnts are i Rs. million except share data and per share data, unlesy stated otheryvise)

21 Other equity

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Caputal redemption reserve 337 337
Retained earnings 72690 10728 2
Securities premium (net off stamp duty on issue of shares of Rs 175) 11.0950 11,0950
Contribution from Parent 284 251
Other comprehensive income (fair value gans/(loss) on equity instruments) (134 4.3
Foreign currency translation reserve 134 927
Capnal reserve 60306 6,030 6
Legal reserve 13
Total other equity 24.458.0 27,9335
Movement of other equity: As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Capital redemption reserve
\s at the beginning of the vear 337 337
\dd Addition dunng the vear - o
Less Utlisation during the vear - -
33.7 33.7
Retained earnings
\s at the beginning of the vear 10,728 2 83993
Add Profut for the year 2,556/9 2363 3
Less Dividend (6,000 1) 0
Add Other comprehensive income (net of tax) (147) 63 6
7.270.3 10,728.2
Securities premium
A5 at the begining of the vear 11.0950 1aor4
Less Share issue expenses - (b4)
11.095.0 11,095.0
Contribution from Parent
\s at the beginming of the vear 380 E:Led
Add Compensation cost related to emplovee share based payment plans (refer note 43) 33 68
Less Cross charge from ultimate holding company for emplovee share based payment plans - (09)
28.4 25.1
Other comprehensive income (Fair value gains/(loss) on equity instruments)
As at the beginning of the vear 112 B2
Less Fair value gain (loss) during the vear (24 6) =
(13.4) 112
Shares pending issuance
\s at the beginning of the year - 2,700 0
Less Shares issued on account of merger (refer note 33) - 2,700 0)
Capital reserve
\s at the beginning of the vear 6,030 6 -
Add Capital reserve arising on account of merger (refer note 33) - 6,030 6
6.030.6 6,030.6
Foreign currency translation reserve
\s at the beginning of the vear 97 80
Add Other comprehensive income (net of tax) 17 | 7
13.4 9.7
Legal reserve
A5 at the beginning of the vear - -
\dd Addition during the vear 13 -
1.3 2

\.  Nature and purpose of reserves:

1 Capital redemption reserve The Company has bought back equity shares and as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has created capital redemption reserve out of the profits of the Company
available for distribution of dividend The resenve can be utilized agaist issue of fully paid up bonus shares of the Company

I Retained earnings: It comprises of the accumulated profits (loss) of the Group. less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders Retamned earnings include re-measurement loss
(zain) on defined benefit plans. net of taxes that will not be reclassified to Restated Summary Statement of Profit and Loss

i1 Securities premium: It represents the premium received on 1ssue of shares over and above the face value of equity shares The reserve 1s available for utilisation in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act
2013

i Contribution from parent: It comprises of the fair value of the share options granted to the employees of the Company by the ultimate holding company, Orkla ASA

¥ Other comprehensive income: It represents the net fair value gain (losses) recorded on investment in equity instruments carried at fair value through other comprehensive income

“oreign currency translation reserve contains the accumulated balance of foreign exchange differences arising on monetary items that, in substance, form part of the Group's net

\1 Foreign currency translation reserve:
\nvestment in a foreien operation whose functional currency 1s other than Indian Rupee
vii Capital reserve: Includes Rs 6.030 6 reserve created on account of merger of Eastern Condiments Private Limited (ECPL) with the Company Refer Note 52
v Shares pending issuance: It represents the resenve created towards the value of ROCPS to be 1ssued to the promoters of Eastern Condiments Private Limited (ECPL) as per the scheme of merger
17

x Legal reserve: As required by the UAE Federal Decree-Law No 32 of 2021 relating to commercial compantes, 30 of the profits are to be transferred to a legal reserve ull the balance n lecal reserve reaches 50%0 of the

share capital, as minimum prescribed by the aforesaid law

B. Dividend distribution made:

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Dividends on equity shares declared and paid:
Interim dividend for the vear ended on March 31. 2025 Rs 438 0 per share (March 31 2024 Nil) 5866 3 -
Dividends on ROCPs declared 3
1338 s

6.000.1 0.0
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(A1l amounts are i Rs. million. unless stated otherwise)

22 Non-current borrowings

From others (unsecured)
Loan from director of ECPL

Details of security and terms of repayment

As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
- 37.7
- 37.7

It represents interest free unsecured loan amounting to Rs. 37.7 given by Mr. Navas M. Meeran. (director of ECPL) to the Company The same loan has been written back during the year ended

March 31. 2025 [refer note 3(a)(in)]

23 Government grants

Grant received for capital assets under Export Promotion Capital Goods (EPCG) scheme (refer note 46) -

Movement in liability is as follows:
Opening balance

Refunded
Closing balance

Current

Non-current

24 Other non-current liabilities

Interest on government grants (refer note 46)

[
n

Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises*

Trade Payable Ageing Schedule

As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
10.7
- 10.7

As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
10.7 10.7

(10.7) %

- 10.7
- 10.7

As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
- 13.2
- 13.2

As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
6514 621.1
20469 1,695.1
2,698.3 2,316.2

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

As at March 31, 2025 Unbilled Not due S =
. Less th::a:_ 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
i 9 2 ‘1.‘ Q 3
T'otal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 126.0 4952 2 04 L O Lo
enterprises
. = 39 5109 38 2 2
T'otal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 13918 o = L Lo = L0469
enterprises and small enterprises
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
i o o . » - - - - : 03 03
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises
Total 1,518.1 1,009.1 164.6 22 1.6 29 2,698.3
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
As at March 31, 2024 Unbilled Not due Less than 1
£ ::ar 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 2147 375.0 313 " 2 0.1 621.1
enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 1.208.0 3162 165.8 2.1 05 1.9 1.694.5
enterprises and small enterprises
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises i ) i ) ) i )
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises - 4 - 02 & 0.4 06
and small enterprises
Total 1,422.7 691.2 197.1 2.3 0.5 2.4 2,316.2




Orkla India Limited (formerly known as Orkla India Private Limited and MTR Foods Private Limited)
CIN: UI5136KA1996PLC021007

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
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26a Other non-current financial liabilities

At amortised cost
Pavable to employees

26b Other current financial liabilities

27

28

At amortised cost

Interest accrued and due on borrowings

Pavable to employees

Payable for purchase of capital goods**

Deposits from suppliers and others

Refund liabilities (refer note 30(d))

Payable to promoters of ECPL (refer note 54)

Liability on account of supplier finance arrangement [refer note (1) below]

At fair value through profit and loss
Liability on account of forward commitment (refer note 52)
Derivative liability (mark-to-market losses on derivative contracts)

*Includes outstanding dues to micro & small enterprises of Rs.7.0 (March 31,2024:Rs. 7.8)
Note

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

140.2 79.0
140.2 79.0
304.6 420.6
14.3 21.0
87 L1.7
89 82.0
2515 =
518 733.5
36.0 36.0
- 1.1
1,662.5 1,305.9

(1) It represents the payables to authorised mstitutions operating the Trade Receivables Discounting Systems (TReDS), and Citi Bank. where vendors have discounted their receivables due from

the Group.

Other current liabilities

Statutory dues payable *
Pavable towards CSR expenditure
Contract liabilities [refer note 30(c)]

* Includes dues towards provident fund. employee state insurance dues. profession tax. withholding taxes. goods and services tax

Current provisions

Employee benefit obligation:
Provision for gratuity [refer note: 40(b)]
Provision for compensated absences
Others
Other provisions [refer note 43(1)]

Total

Current tax liabilities (net)

Income tax liabilities (net of advance tax)
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As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
654 714
582 589
459 46.7
759.0 177.0
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
580 34
76.0 754
1427 1142
276.7 193.0
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
L7 479
1.7 479
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30  Revenue from operations

Finished goods
Stock-in-trade
Sale of products (\)

Other operating revenue:
Scrap sales
Export incentives
Sale of energy from windmills
Government grant (production linked incentive)
Others*
Other operating revenue (B)

Total revenue from operations (A+B)

# Includes commission income and collection fees for food festival

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31,2024

21.0300 22.132.6
25532 1.0913
23,583.2 23,223.9
617 47.0
558 469
138 25.0
2058 2173
268 -
363.9 336.2
23,947.1 23.560.1

(a) Disclosure of disaggregated revenue recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss based on geographical segment:*

Revenue from customers within India
Revenue from customers outside India

Revenue as per the consolidated statement of profit and loss

(b) Timing of revenue recognition:*

Goods transferred at a point in time

(¢) Contract balances

Contract habilities - Advance from customers (refer note 27)

Advances from customers represent amounts received by the Group from customers prior to the delivery of goods an
statements until the goods are delivered. During the year ended March 31, 2025. the Group recognised revenue of Rs
at March 31. 2024 During the year ended March 31, 2024 the Company recognised revenue of Rs 585

2023

(d)  Refund liabilities :

Refund liabilities [refer note 27b]

Refund labilities represent the Group's obligation to refund to customers due to returns or cancellations of
amount expected to be refunded. based on historical trends and customer agreements Refund liabilities are reco
it 1s probable that a refund will be made. and the amount can be reliably estimated Changes in the refund liability are a

becomes known

#The amount of Rs 363 9 (March 31,2024 Rs 336 2) pertaining to other operating revenue has not been considered in the above revenue

<This space is intentionally left blank>

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

18,721.5 18.792.8
4.8617 44311
23,583.2 23,223.9

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

23,583.2 232239
23,583.2 23,2239
As at As at

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

159

As at
March 31, 2025

46.7

d are recorded as liabilities in these financial
16 7 arising from advance from customers as
arising from advance from customers as at March 31.

As at
March 31, 2024

89 6

820

goods or services These liabilities are measured at the
gnized as a hability in the financial statements when
djusted n the period m which the adjustment

disclosure
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(e) Reconciliation of revenue as recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss with the contracted price:*

Year ended Year ended
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Revenue as per contracted price 257117 25.0946
Less

Sales return (215.1) (307.9)
Discounts and volume rebates (1.853 4) (1.562.8)
Revenue as per the consolidated statement of profit and loss 23,583.2 23,223.9

*The amount of Rs. 363 9 (March 31. 2024 Rs 336 2) pertaining to other operating revenue has not been considered in the above revenue disclosure

Performance obligation

Sale of goods

I'he performance obligation in the case of domestic sales 1s satistied upon delivery of the goods 1o the customers and in the case of export sales, the performance
obligation 1s satisfied upon shipping of the goods on board

31  Other income
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Interest income

Loan to associates 39 3.5
Bank deposit 1358 836
Others* 03 38
Unwinding of security deposit 32 2.9

Gain on termination/modification of right-of-use assets (refer note 4) 14 -

Gain on sale of property. plant and equipment 2.1 -
Profit on sale of mnvestments in units of mutual funds 3004 104 8
Fair value gain on financial mstruments at FVTPL 35.7 44.1
Liabilities written back 508 1.5
Gain on foreign exchange fluctuations 428 69 0
Other non-operating income** 89 66
605.3 319.8

* Majorly includes interest on factory electricity deposit and interest on income tax retund
#* Majorly includes distributors penalty discount and reimbursement of export charges. recovery from vendors. customs duty drawback

<This space is intentionally left blank>
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32

a)

b)

33

34

Cost of raw material and packing materials consumed
Year ended
March 31, 2025

Y ear ended
March 31,2024

Raw materials

Inventory at the beginning of the year (refer note 12) 1.523:5 2.187.1
Add Purchases (net) 10,7359 11,6582
12,259.4 13,.845.3
Less Inventory at the end of the year (refer note 12) 1.592.6 1.523.5
10,666.8 12,321.8
Packing materials
Inventory at the beginning of the year (refer note 12) 1603 189 9
Add Purchases (net) 1.124.5 749.2
1,284.8 939.1
Less Sales - 01
Less Inventory at the end of the year (refer note 12) 210.3 160 3
1,074.5 778.7
Total (a+h) 11,741.3 13,100.5
Purchase of stock-in-trade
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025

March 31,2024

Purchase of stock-in-trade 1.439.7

680 5

1,439.7

680.5

Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade

Y ear ended
March 31,2023

Y ear ended
March 31,2024

Stock-in-trade

Opening Inventory (refer Note 12) 839 616
Closing Inventory (refer Note 12) 130.1 839
Decrease/ (increase) in inv entories (46.2) (22.3)
Work in progress

Opening Inventory (refer Note E2) 4056 3400
Closing Inventory (refer Note 12) 352:8 405.6
Decrease/ (increase) in inventories 52.8 (65.6)
Finished goods

Opening Inventory (reter Note 12) 7092 63353
Closing Inventory (refer Note 12) 688 4 709.2
Decrease/ (increase) in inventories 20.8 (55.8)
\et decrease/ (increase) in inventories (atb+c) 27.4 (143.6)

Employee benefits expense
Y ear ended

Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

Salaries. wages and bonus 21090 1.970.0
Contribution to provident and other funds |refer note 40(a)] 1137 1113
Gratuity expense [refer note 40(b)] 403 470
Staft welfare expenses 1954 188 4
Share based payment (refer note 44) 68
2,323.5

<This space is intentionally left blank>
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36

37

38

Finance costs

Interest expense on borrowings

Interest expense on lease labilities [refer note 4(b)]
Interest expense on payment to micro and small enterprises

Bank charges [refer note (1) below]

Interest on income tax

Note

(1) Bank charges mainly consist of LC charges

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property. plant and equipment (refer note 3)
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 3)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets [refer note Ha)]

Other expenses

Consumption of stores and spares
Power and fuel
Processing & water charges
Repairs and maintenance
Plant and machinery
Buildings
Others
Rent
Rates and taxes
Insurance
Communication costs
Iravelling and conveyance
Legal and professional tees

Pavments to auditors [refer note (1) below]

Advertising and sales promotion
Freight and forwarding charges
Vehicle fuel expenses

Impairment loss/ (reversal of impairment loss) on trade receivables
Loss on sale of property. plant and equipment (net)

Advance written off
Bad debts written off’
CSR expenses
Printing and stationery
Manpower supply
Recruitment expenses
Security charges

Miscellaneous expenses *

Note (i): Payment to auditors:
As auditor:
Audit fee
In other capacity:
Other services
Reimbursement of expenses

*Includes loss of Rs 2.5 on hqui
7

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Y ear ended
March 31, 2024

- 22
544 356
1.2
55.6 57.8
93 8.2
06 04
9.9 8.6
65.5 66.4
Year ended Y ear ended

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

4107 4225
1242 114.5
824 842
617.3 621.2

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31,2024

65.2 501
2493 254.3
294 597
68 4 759
11.4 14.5
337.7 286.8
836 718
824 1104
486 441
104 9.0
190 8 178 3
2344 3431
38.7 28.3
14245 1,3382
5275 4757
52.3 497
(496) 07
= 03
436 -
181 -
481 541
5.7 4.1
369 3 4710
214 260
322 38
1650 2052
4,308.4 4,185.2
21.0 178
169 vy
08 06
38.7 28.3
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39 Income tax expense

Current income tax charge

I'ax expense relating to earlier years
Deferred tax

Total

Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year

Re-measurement losses on defined benefit plans
Total

Reconciliation of tax (income)/ expense and the accounting profi

\ccounting profit/ (loss) before income tax
Tax expense at India’s statutory income tax rate

Tax effect of

Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes
Adjustment of tax relating to carlier years
Others*

Income tax expense for the year

* Majorly includes tax on income under section

of 25 168% (March 31. 2024 25 168%)

92CE of Income tax Act. 1961

<This space 1s intentionally left blank>

Y ear ended
March 31, 2025

Y ear ended
March 31,2024

t/ (loss) multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate:

870 6 6351
(134) 82
136 4 1617
993.6 805.0
(49) 22.0
4.9) 22.0
3.,550.5 3,068.3
893 8 7722
108 4 19.3
(134) 82
50 5.3
993.8 805.0
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B. Net benefit expense

(i) Recognised in profit or loss

Current service cost
Interest cost (net)

Past service cost

(ii) Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income

Actuarial loss/(gain) on defined benefit obligation

- changes in demographic assumptions

- changes in financial assumptions

- experience adjustments

Return on plan assets. excluding amount recognised in net interest expense

C. Plan assets

Investments with insurer Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC)

I'he Group expects to contribute Rs. 97.6 (March 31. 2024: Rs. 43.1) to gratuity fund in the next financial year.

D. (i) Actuarial assumptions

I'he principal assumptions used in determining gratuity for the Group's plans are shown below:

Discount rate
Salary escalation rate
Attrition (based on completed years of service)
Upto 4 years
Above 4 years
Attrition (based on age)
Upto 45 years
Above 45 years
Retirement age

Y ear ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31,2024

371 3.1
0.3 3.9
3.1 =

40.5 47.0

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
Mareh 31, 2024

o (3.1

115 (38.9)

(14.0) (47.5)

22.1 1.9

19.6 (87.6)

As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
100% 100%

As at As at

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

6.70%- 6.80%
9.00°%

15%

8.00% - 9.00%

5.00%
5.00%
58-60 years

7:15%
9.00%

15%

8.00% t0 9.00%
5.00%
5.00%

38 to 60 years

As at March 31. 2023. the weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation was in range of 7 to 10 years (March 31.2024: 7 to 9 years).

(ii) Sensitivity Analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions. holding other assumptions constant. would have

affected the defined obligation [(reduction)/increase| by the amount shown below:

31-Mar-25

March 31, 2024

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (+1/-1% movement)
Increase/(Decrease) in DBO (3.4 35 (31.2) 35.2
Future salary growth (+1/-1% movement)
Increase/(Decrease) in salary 343 (31.0) 33.8 (30.6)
Attrition rate (+350/-30% movement)
Increase/(Decrease) in attrition rate (16.3) (13.5) 20.1

lhe \Ln\lll\ll\ dndl\\l\ are based on a LhdnUL ina \IUHI“LJHL dssumplmn l\upmu all other a:xumptmns mnxmm The sensitivity andl\ sis may not be

anmhcr.

isolation from one
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40 Employee benefit obligation

a. Defined contribution plans

I'he Group makes contribution determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries. in respect of qualifyi

ng employees towards provident fund

which is a defined contribution plan. For provident fund. the Company has an obligation under law to make the specified contribution and the contribution
are charged to profit and loss account. The amount recognised as an expense tow ards contribution to the provident fund and other funds during the period

aggregated to Rs. 113.7 (March 31.2024: Rs. 111.3).

Amount recognised as an expense and included in Note - 35 as "Contribution to provident and other

funds"

Contribution to government provident fund
Contribution to Employee State Insurance (ESI)
Contribution to other funds

Total

b. Defined benefit plans

Gratuity

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

104.7 101.0
8.2 9.3
0.8 1.0

113.7 111.3

I'he Group has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Under the gratuity plan. every employee who has completed atleast five years or more of service gets a

gratuity on departure at 15 days of last drawn salary for cach completed year of service. The scheme is funded with an insurance company in the form of

qualifying insurance policy.

I'he following table summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss and the funded status and amounts

recognised in the balance shect.

Net Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO)

Present value of defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets

A. Reconciliation of net defined benefit liability/(asset)

(i) Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation

Opening defined benefit obligation

Current service cost

Interest expense

Benetits paid

Actuarial (gain)/ losses recognised in other comprehensive income
- changes in demographic assumptions
- changes in tinancial assumptions
- experience adjustments

Past service cost

Closing defined benefit obligation
(ii) Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets

Balance at the beginning of the year

Employer's contribution

Benefits paid

Interest income

Return on plan assets. excluding amount recognised in net interest expense
Balance at the end of the year

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

(463.4) (451.7)
405.4 448.3
(58.0) (3.4)

As at As at

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

451.8 480.5
37.1 43.1
323 353
(38.4) (17.7)

5 (3.1)

1.5 (38.9)

(14.0) (47.5)
3.1 -

463.4 451.7

427.0

9.5

(17.7)

314

(1.9)

448.3
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c.

(iii) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Expected cash flows over the next (valued on undiscounted basis):
1 year 541 47.9
2 to 5 years 189.1 187.7
Bevond 5 years 588.2 614.5
Total expected payments 831.4 850.1

. Risk exposure:

Through its defined benefit plans. the Group is exposed to a number of risks. the most significant of which is detailed below:

Interest rate risk:
I'he plan exposes the Group to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an increase in the ultimate cost of providing the
above benefit and will thus result in an increase in the value of the liability (as shown in financial statements).

Liquidity risk:
I'his is the risk that the Group is not able to meet the short-term gratuity payouts. I'his may arise due to non availabilty of enough cash / cash
equivalent to meet the liabilities or holding of illiquid assets not being sold in time.

Salary escalation risk:

I'he present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants in future. Deviation in the
rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of obligation will have a
bearing on the plan's liability.

Demographic risk:
I'he Group has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of the liability. The Group is exposed to the risk of actual experience
turning out to be worse compared to the assumption.

Asset liability mismatching or market risk:
I'he duration of the liability is longer compared to duration of assets. exposing the Group to market risk for volatilities/fall in interest rate.

Investment risk:
I'he probability or likelihood of occurrence of losses relative to the expected return on any particular investment.

Long Term Incentives (LTI) Scheme

During the year. the Company introduced a LTI scheme for CXO-level exccutives and management-level employees. The scheme covers a 3 year period

from 2024-26. The incentives are paid to the participants of the scheme based on the achievements of the target parameters specified in the scheme.

I'he following table summarise the components of expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss and amounts recognised in the balance sheet.

Scheme 1 - CXO level executives

(i) Reconciliation of the benefits

As at As at

Opening balance March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Expense for the year - -
Benetits paid 49.6 -
Closing balance - -
49.60 -

(ii) Acturial assumptions

Th ool ass wep— i benefit fi ] . v As at As at

e principal assumptions used in determining benefit for the scheme are shown below: March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Discount rate 6.50% -
Attrition 12.50% -
Retirement age 60 yrs -

Mortality rate 100% of TALM 2012-14

W of the benefit is 2.16 years (March 31. 2024: Nil)
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(iii) Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions. holding other assumptions constant. would have
affected the defined obligation [(reduction)/increase] by the amount shown below:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (+1/-1% movement)
Increase/(decrease) in DBO (1.3) 0.8 - -
Attrition rate (+350°%0/-50% movement)
Increase/(decrease) in DBO (5.8) 6.6 - =
Mortality rate (+10/-10% movement)
Increase/(decrease) in DBO (0.1) 0l - -

I'he sensitivity analysis are based on a change in a significant assumption. keeping all other assumptions constant. The sensitivity analysis may not be
representative of an actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions would occur in isolation from one

another.

(iv) Maturity profile of benefit

As at As at

Expected cash flows over the next (valued on undiscounted basis): March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1 year - -
2 to 5 years 56.9 -
Total expected payments 56.9 -
Scheme 2 - Management employees

: e g As at As at
(i) Reconciliation of the benefits March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening balance - 4
Expense for the year 383 -
Benetits paid - -
Closing balance 38.3 -
(ii) Acturial assumptions
- _ . . . As at As at
I'he principal assumptions used in determining benefit for the plan are shown below: March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Discount rate 6.50% -
Attrition 8.70% -
Retirement age 60 yrs -
Mortality rate 100% of IALM 2012-14 -

As at March 31. 2025. the weighted average duration of the benefit is 2.16 years (March 31. 2024: Nil)
(iii) Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions. holding other assumptions constant. would have
affected the defined obligation [(reduction)/increase| by the amount shown below:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (+1/-1%0 movement)
Increase/(decrease) in DBO (1.0) 0.6 -

Attrition rate (+30%/-50% movement)

Increase/(decrease) in DBO (3.4) 3.7 -
Mortality rate (+10/-10° movement)
Increase/(decrease) in DBO (0.0) 0.0 -

Fslimption. keeping all other assumptions constant. The sensitivity analysis may not be

representative of an actual change in the dglingd n as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions would occur in isolation from one
\\ O~
another. X %
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(iv) Maturity profile of benefit
Expected cash flows over the next (valued on undiscounted basis):
| year

2 1o 5 years
Total expected payments

<This space is intentionally left blank>

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

43.9

43.9
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41 Investment in associate and joint venture

i) Pot Ful India Private Limited (Pot Ful) - Associate

On December 1. 2018. the Company had acquired 1.112 shares of Pot Ful, comprising of 10% shareholdin
1.2019. During the year ended March 31. 2020. the Company had further acquired 25
Ful. resulting to 26.5% shareholding in Pot Ful and w.e.f July 13, 2019. Pot Ful became an associa
years ended March 31. 2023 and March 31. 2024, the Company additionally subscribed to
further resulting to 30.47% shareholding in Pot Ful. During the current year ended March

oods Private Limited)

g in Pot Ful as at April
2 equity shares from the promoters of Pot
te of the Company. During the
218 and 539 equity shares respectively.
31. 2025, Pot Ful issued 280 shares to

other shareholders. resulting in change of the Company's shareholding to 29.87%. The Company’s interest in Pot Ful is accounted

for using the equity method in the restated consolidated summary statements.

Summarised financial information of the associate, based on its financial statements, and reconciliation with the carrying amount

of the investment in restated consolidated summary statements are set out below:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Non-current sssets 110.0 83.7
Current assets 40.2 40.7
Non-current liabilities (44.7) (73.8)
Current liabilities (140.1) (90.0)
Equity (34.6) (39.4)
Group's share in equity - 29.87% (March 31. 2024 : 30.47%) (10.3) (12.0)
Goodwill 146.5 162.0
Group's carrying amount of the investment 136.2 150.0

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Revenue from operationss
Other income

Cost of goods sold
Depreciation and amortization
Finance cost

Employee benefit expense
Other expense

Loss before tax
Tax expense

Loss for the year

Group's share of loss for the year

<This space is intentionally left blank>

587.2 414.2

0.5 0.6
(210.7) (144.9)
(19.1) (17.8)
(24.0) (16.0)
(100.4) (90.7)
(273.8) (185.4)
(40.3) (40.0)

(4.9) (1.8)
(45.2) (41.8)
(13.8) (12.6)
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ii)

Eastern Condiments Middle East and North Africa FZC, UAE (ECMENA) - Joint Venture

The Group has a 50% interest in ECMENA, a joint venture involved in the trading of spices and general trading, incorporated in
United Arab Emirates. The Group's interest in ECMENA is accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial
statements. Summarised financial information of the joint venture, based on its financial statements, and reconciliation with the
carrying amount of the investment in consolidated financial statements are set out below:

An analysis of the Group’s investment in ECMENA is as follows:

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening balance 128.9 92.5
Share of profits 9.8 34.7
Transalation exchange difference 3.2 1.7
Closing balance 141.9 128.9
Summarised balance sheet of ECMENA is as follows:
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 March 31, 2024
Non-current assets 0.2 0.3
Current assets 285.8 365.2
Total assets 286.0 365.5
Non-current liabilities - 8.1
Current liabilities 2.2 99.6
Total liabilities 2.2 107.7
Book value of net assets 283.8 257.8
Percentage ownership interest 50% 50%
Accumulated Group's share of net assets 141.9 128.9

Summarised statement of profit and loss of ECMENA is as follows:

Particular

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Revenue from operations

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income
Group’s share of profit for the year
Dividend received

The joint venture had no contingent liabilities or capital commitments as at March 31, 2025 and March 31.

<This space is intentionally left blank>

164.6
19:5

19.5
9.8

506.7
69.4

69.4
34.7

2024.
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42

a)

b)

Commitments

l.eases

Lease commitments as lessee

I'he Group has lease contracts for various office/ store premises and warchouse facilities. The lease term is for a period ranging from 2 to 25 years. The
agreements contain fixed rentals with escalation clause in the lease agreements. Certain lease agreements have renewal option at the mutual agreement of the
lessee and lessor. The agreements contain options to terminate the leases after giving a specitied notice period to the other party. Accordingly. the Group has
considered the initial term of agreement as lease term under Ind AS 116.

I'he Group also has lease of premises with lease terms of 12 months or less and lease of premises with low value. The Group applies the “short-term lease” and
“lease of low-value assets™ recognition exemptions for these leases.

I'he below table provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities on undiscounted basis :

As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Within one year 129.0 130.5
\fter one year but not more than five year 3723 4285
More than five years 349.7 391.1
Total 851.0 950.1

T'otal cash outflow for leases for the year ended March 31. 2025 is Rs. 217.4 (March 31. 2024: Rs. 230.8).

I'he effective interest rate for lease liabilities is between 7% to 12.5% per annum (31 March, 2024 is between 7% to 12.5% per annum). with maturity
between 2023 to 2046 for leaschold properties.

I.ease commitments for leases not considered in measurement of lease liabilities:

As at As at
March 31,2025  March 31, 2024

[.case commitment for short-term leases 389 27.5
[ ease commitment for leases of low value assets 2,1 2.8
Total 41.0 30.3

Additional information on extension/termination option:
I xtension and termination options are included in a number of lease arrangements of the Group. These extension and termination options held are exercisable

based on mutual consent of the Group and respective lessors.

Other commitments
As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

I-stimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for. 323 26.0
net of advances

<This space 1s intentionally left blank>
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(1)
(1)

Contingent liabilities
As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024

Litigations *
Indirect taxation (refer note (ii) to (vi) below) 1.2433 770.0

Other litigations 26.0 26.0

Notes :

(1)

(1)

(111)

(1v)

(v)

(V1)

(vir)

(viil

In the prior years. the Group had received claims from the Value Added Tax (VAT) authorities for payment of higher VAT for certain products. Accordingly.
as a matter of prudence. the Group had made a provision amounting to Rs. 114.2 in its books of account towards such differential taxes. As at March 31.
2025, March 31, 2024 and March 31. 2023. the Group carries a provision of Rs. 114.2 in this regard. In the year ended March 31, 2013 the Honourable High
Court of Karnataka had adjudicated the matter in favour of the Group. The VAT authorities have filed a Special Leave Petition (SLP) in the Supreme Court
which has been admitted by the Supreme Court. Accordingly. management continues 0 carry the provision as a matter of prudence pending final adjudication
of the matter of law before the Supreme Court.

I'he Group has ongoing litigation under service tax amounting to Rs. 81.6 (March 31.2024: Rs. 84.3. March 31. 2023 Rs. 84.3). In the prior years. the Group
had received demand order under section 73(2). of Finance Act 1994 from the Principal Commissioner of Central Tax and Central Excise. The dispute mainly
relates to the applicability of service tax on amounts reimbursed by the Group to its branch office located outside India for the period from April 2010 to June
2017. The Group has filed an appeal with the Central Fxcise and Service Tax Appellate Tribunal (CESTAT) and the Management. including its tax advisors.
believe that its position will likely be upheld in the forums where these are contested.

I'he Group has ongoing disputes with Sales Tax/VAT authorities amounting to Rs. 104.2 (March 31. 2024 Rs. 118.8. March 31. 2023: Rs.443.1). The
outstanding disputes mainly include disputes on account of levy of purchase tax. denial of concessional rate of tax ete. During the year. the Group settled the
dispute amounting to Rs. 13.2 based on the final assessment order and received favourable order in a case amounting to Rs. 1.4, For the pending matters, the
Group is contesting the demands before the appellate authorities and the Management. including its tax advisors. believe that its position will likely be upheld
in the forums where these are contested.

I'he Group has ongoing litigations under the Goods and Services Tax (GST) Jaw amounting to Rs. 994.1 (March 31. 2024: Rs. 498.6. March 31, 2023: Rs.
6 4). The disputes mainly involve payment of RCM on import of services. availment of Input Tax Credit (ITC) on common services. ITC availed in excess of
amounts reflected in GSTR-2A. Input av ailed on blocked credits ete. The Group is contesting the demands before the appellate authorities and the
Management. including its tax advisors. believe that its position will likely be upheld in the forums where these are contested.

On May 6. 2019. the Group recety od a show cause notice (SCN) from the Directorate General of Goods and Service Tax Intelligence. Surat zonal unit. for the
financial period April 01. 2014 to June 30. 2017 whereby it has been alleged that 'ready to cook spice mixes’ (except sambar mix. missal rasa mix and pav
bhaji mix ) should be classified as 'mixed condiments and mixed seasoning' and chargeable to excise duty claiming Rs. 59.2 plus interest and penalty. Further
benefits of SSI exemption notification was denied to the Group on clearance of sambar mix. missal rasa mix and pav bhaji mix during the above period. The
Group has filed a responsc to the SCN rejecting all the charges and has submitted that the aforesaid SCN should be quashed. The Group is confident that no
liability will arise on the Group and it has strong defence on the matter. No adjustment has been made in these consolidated financial statements.

Others indirect tax matters of Rs. 2.1 (March 31. 5024: 9.1) relate to ongoing excise duty cases relating to concessional rate of tax av ailed by the Group in the
manufacture and sale of certain products. During the current year. in the matter of one case relating to Ready-to-cat food products classification which is
pending before the Honourable Supreme Court. the Group has prov ided for the demand amounting to Rs. 7.0 as a matier of prudence. For the pending matter.
the Group is contesting the demands before the appellate authorities and the Management. including its tax advisors. believe that its position will likely be
upheld in the forums where these are contested

Other litigations includes amount pay able to workmen terminated by the Group in prior years on account of professional misconduct. The workmen has filed
a case in the Labour Court and the Group has filed an appeal. The Group is contesting the demand and the Management. including its legal advisors. believe
that its position will likely be upheld in the forums where these are contested.

I'he Group has received multiple notices alleging non-compliance with food safety regulations under the Food Safety and Standards Authority of India
(FSSAI) Act. with proceedings initiated before relevant statutory forums. The allegations primarily pertains to the presence of pesticide residues exceeding
permissible limits in certain batches of finished goods. The Group is contesting the aforesaid matters at various levels of adjudication. The Management.
including its legal advisors. believe that its position will likely be upheld in the forums where these are contested. Accordingly. the Management has assessed
that these cases do not have a material impact on these consolidated financial statements.

I'he Group has assessed that it is only possible. but not probable. that outflow of cconomic resources will be required in all the above cases.

* The above figures includes the interest/penalty only in cases where it's mentioned in the order. In other cases. the interest penalty is not included as a reliable
estimate cannot be made.

<This space is intentionally left blank>
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44 Share based payments

['he ultimate holding company (Orkla ASA) of the Company operates cquity incentive compensation programs which include Long Term Incentive (L TD) plan
for executive management and the Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the ESPP) for employees.

Under these plans. Orkla ASA. the ultimate holding company of the Company has granted equity shares which are settled in cash for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operation. All awards granted to employees (including directors) are
subject to approval in advance by the board of directors of Orkla ASA. Share-based payments are considered as equity settled transactions as the Company has
no obligation to settle the share based payment transaction.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP)

I'he ESPP permits eligible employees to acquire shares of the Orkla common stock at a 23% discount (as determined in the ESPP) through periodic payroll
deductions over 12 months. The purchase price for the ultimate Company’s common stock under the ESPP is 73% of the fair market value of the shares on the
date defined in the scheme document during the offer period. The ESPP will be in force only during the offer period mentioned in the scheme document.
Fligible employees can place orders for shares in one of the three lots as defined by the scheme. The lock-in period for the shares purchased through ESPP is 3
vears. The lock-in will apply even if an employee resigns before the lock-in expires

I'he adoresaid plan was not availed by any employees of the Company for the years ended March 31. 2025 and March 31. 2024

The expense recognised for employee services received during the year is shown in the following table (Refer Year ended Year ended
Note 35) March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Expense arising from share-based payment transactions 33 6.8
[includes Nil (March 31. 2024: Rs. 0.9) cross charge from ultimate holding company |

Total 3.3 6.8

Ihere were no cancellations or modifications to the awards during the year ended March 31. 2025 and March 31.2024.
Long Term Incentive (LLTT) Scheme - Cash settled

Certain employees of the Group are granted LTI Participants in the LTI programme are nominated on a yearly basis and aw ards are made for one vear at a time
subject to the approval of the President and CEO of Orkla ASA. The LTI vests over a period of four vears from the date of grant. and the vesting generally

110

oceurs at a rate of 34% after 24 months. 33% after 36 months and 33% after 48 months from the date of grant.

Orkla ASA determines the fair value of LTI based on the closing market price of the common stock on the date of grant. The amount awarded is adjusted in
accordance with the Orkla ASA share price performance until it is paid out. The exercise price for LTI is Nil.

I'he following I T1s as granted to the Group's employees. were outstanding during the vear:

Particulars March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Number of Shares Number of Shares
Outstanding at the beginning of the year - 1.13.976
1.T1s granted during the vear - -
LTIs exercised during the year - (1.13.976)

L TIs forfeited during the year - =
[.Tls transterred during the year (net) if any ® =
Outstanding at the ending of the year E =

I'he weighted average fair value of LTI at grant date (Rs.) & 95

Long Term Incentive (L TI) Scheme - Share option

I'he yearly grant will be based on the share price on the day after the Annual General Meeting. Of the total options granted for the year. 20% may be exercised
after one vear (tranche 1). another 20% after two years (tranche 2) and the remaining 60% after three years (tranche 3). The last date on which they may be
exercised is five years after the grant date. The exercise price will be set at the market price at the grant date with an increase of 3% per vear in the vesting
period. The exercise price will be adjusted for dividends. In the event of the employee’s resignation. all options that have not been exercised will expire.

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Number of Shares WAEP| Number of Shares WAEP
Outstanding option at the beginning of the year 2.05.854 607 1,35.211 607
Granted during the year - - 70.643 Sl6

Exercised during the year

Expired during the year

2.05.854 607 2.05.854 607

Forfeited during the year

Outstanding option at the e

Exercisable at the e Abesk 1.12.870 607 41,926 574
xercisable at the end nfths\)\tdi’ My 3
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The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options outstanding as at March 31. 2025 was 2.02 years (March 31. 2024: 3.02).
The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was Rs. Nil (March 31, 2024: Rs. 86.0)
The range of exercise prices for options outstanding at the end of the year was Rs. 309 to Rs. 667 (March 31, 2024: Rs. 509 to Rs. 667).

The option value is calculated using the Black-Scholes model. The exercise price at the exercise date is adjusted for dividends paid out up to the exercise date.
The table below shows the assumptions on which the calculation is based for the option granted during the year.

No options are granted during the financial year ended March 31. 2025.

March 31, 2024

Tranche 1 Tranche 2 Tranche 3
Number of Options 14,129 14.129 42.385
Weighted avergae fair values at measurement date 81 88 87
Dividend yield (%) 4.10% 4.10% 4.10%
Expected volatility (%) 18.88% 21.17% 20.91%
Risk—free interest rate (%o) 3.21% 3.18% 3.16%
Expected life of share options (years) 3.00 3.50 4.00
Exercise price at grant date 561 561 561
Exercise price at first possible exercise date 509 514 519

Segment reporting
The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) is the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) and evaluates the Group’s performance and allocates resources based on
an analysis of various performance indicators by industry classes. The Group's operations predominantly relate to one segment. viz.. sale of food products and

beverages (manufactured and traded).

Information by geographies

Revenue by geographical market For the year ended For the year
March 31, 2025 ended
March 31, 2024

India 18.721.5 18.792.8
Outside India 4.861.7 4.431.1
23,583.2 23,223.9
There is no identifiable major customer in the Group who is contributing more than 10% of revenue
Non-current operating assets As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
India 21.068.5 21,702.8

Outside India &
Non-current assets for this purpose consist of property. plant and equipment. right-of-use assets. intangible assets income-tax assets and other non-current
Government grant

The Group has been awarded government grant under the Export Promotion Capital Goods (EPCG) scheme:

During the vear ended March 31. 2018, the Group had availed EPCG license benefit of Rs.10.7 against import of capital goods amounting to Rs.133.1 for
manufacturing of confectionery. In respect of this benefit. the Group had an export obligation of 6 times of the duty saved on import of capital goods on FOB
basis within a period of 6 vears from the date of issue of the license. The export obligation was Rs. 64.1. Where the Group fails to achieve the export obligation,
the Group would be liable to pay duty exemption availed with an interest of 18% per annum proportionately to the extent of obligation not met.

The duty saved on capital goods imported under EPCG scheme being government grant. is accounted as stated in the accounting policy on government grant.
The government grant shown in note 23 represents unamortised amount of the duty saved.

During the year ended March 31. 2021. the Group assessed that it will not be able to meet any export obligations under the said license. and hence the Group
would be liable to refund the above benefit amount. along with interest @ 18% p.a. Accordingly. the Group accrued the interest in its books since the date of
availing suchderiefit, =

/‘%}r“\ Sg

'$)

The intial ufl
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47 Related party transactions

A, Name of related party and description of relationship

Description of relationship

Name of the related parties

Relationship/Designation

(a) Entities which have control over the Group

(b) Subsidiaries of Holding company

(¢) Entities over which the Group has significant
mfluence

(d) Joint venture

(¢) Key managerial personnel (KMP)

() Post-employment benefit plan

Orkla ASA. Oslo. Norway
Orkla Asia Pacific Pte Ltd. Singapore

Orkla IT AS
Orkla Procurement AS
Orkla Asia Pacific (M) Sdn. Bhd

Orkla Financial Services AS

Pot Ful India Private Limited

Eastern Condiments Middle East & North Africa
FZC.UAE

\r Sanjay Sharma

Mr. Atle Vidar Nagel Johansen
Ms. Else Helena Margareta

Mr Claes Johan Wilhelmsson
Mr Per Havard Skiaker Macelen
Ms Maria Syse-nybraaten

\Mr Paul Jordahl

Mr. Ganesh Shenoy

Ms Sumana Calapa

Ms. Ragee Raju

\Mr Kaushik Seshadn

Mr. Amit Jain

Ms Meena Ganesh

\Ms. Rashmi Satish Joshi

Mr Shantanu Maharay Khosla

=

@

\ITR Foods Private Limited Employees Gratuity
Rasor Magic Foods (India) pvt. Ltd. Employ ees'
Group Gratuity cum Life Assurance Scheme

Ulumate holding company
Holding company

Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiary

Associate

Joint venture

Managing director and Chief executive ofticer

Chairperson and Director

Non-executive director (upto February 4. 2025)

Non-executive director (upto February 4. 2025)

Non-executive director (w.e f May 11.2023)

Non-executive director (w e fMay 11.2023)

Non-executive director (w ¢ f December 5. 2023 upto February 4. 2023)
Chief Financial Officer (upto December 31, 2023)

Chief Financial Ofticer (w e f January 01.2024)

Company Secretary (w e f July 20. 2023 upto September 22. 2024)
Company Secretary (w ¢ { September 23.2024)

Independent Director (w e f March 10. 2025)

Independent Director (w e f March 10. 2025)

Independent Director (w ¢ £ March 10.2025)

Independent Director (w e March 10. 2025)

Post-employment benefit plan
Post-employment benefit plan

T'his space is mtentionally left blank -
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B. Transactions with the above related parties during the year ended

Nature of transaction
i) Transactions during the year :

Receipt of services

Orkla ASA

Orkla IT AS

Orkla Procurement

Orkla Financial Services AS

Reimbursement of expenses to related parties

Orkla ASA

Orkla IT AS

Eastern Condiments Middle East & North Africa FZC, UAE

Reimbursement of expenses from related parties
Orkla ASA

Shared based payments
Orkla ASA

Management services provided (cross charges)
Orkla ASA

Purchase of stock-in-trade
Orkla Asia Pacific SDN BHD (formerly “Jordan Asia Pacific SDN BHD")

Sale of goods
Pot Ful India Private Limited

Interest on loan
Pot Ful India Private Limited

Agency commission
Eastern Condiments Middle East & North Africa FZC, UAE

ii) Balances outstanding as at year end :

Amounts receivable from :

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

116
129
0.8

51

392.8
3.3

33

0.3

3.9

As at
March 31, 2025

30.6

5.9

0.1

35

As at
March 31, 2024

Orkla ASA - 0.0
Pot Ful India Private Limited - 0.0
Amounts payable to :
Orkla ASA 0.5 15.1
Orkla IT AS - 2.3
Orkla Procurement 11 -
Orkla Financial Services AS 0.1 0.2
Orkla Asia Pacific SDN BHD (formerly "Jordan Asia Pacific SDN BHD") - -
Eastern Condiments Middle East & North Africa FZC, UAE 11 47.9
b. Loans given and repayment thereof
Particulars Opening balance Loans given Repayment Closing balance Interest receivable
i) Associates
Pot Ful India Private Limited
March 31, 2025 50.0 (50.0) - -
March 31, 2024 50.0 - 50.0 0.8
c. Compensation to key managerial personnel

Year ended Year ended

Short-term employee benefits *
Mr. Sanjay Sharma

Ms. Suniana Calapa

Mr. Kaushik Seshadri

Mr. Ganesh Shenoy

Ms. Ragee Raju

Mr. Aneesh K

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

69.9 87.6
16.7 2.1
17 -

- 16.1
0.8 0.6
89.1 106.4




Orkla India Limited (formerly known as Orkla India Private Limited and MITR Foods Private Limited)
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts are n Ry million, unless stated otherwize)
Post-employment benefits
\ir Sanjay Sharma
\s Suniana Calapa
\r Kaushik Seshadn
\ls Ragee Raju

T'otal compensation paid to key managerial personnel

*The amounts disclosed above do not include the share based payment and Long Term Incentives (LTT)

T'erms and conditions of transactions with related parties

05 -
08 03
01 -
0.2 0.2
1.6 0.5
90.7 106.9

(a) The Group had granted an unsecured loan facility to Pot Ful India Private limuted (Pot Ful) at the interest rate of 7% p a. for its principal business activities with repayment date of

September 2024 with quarterly interest rests. The loan has been repaid during the year ended March 31.

(b) All transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail m arm’s length transactions and within the ordinary course of business. Amount owed to and
by related party are unsecured and mterest free and settlement oceurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or pay ables For the
vear ended March 31. 2025 the Group has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (March 31. 2024 Rs. il March 31, 2023: Rs. Nil)

I'his assessment 15 undertaken each financial vear through examining the financial position of the related party and the market m which the related party operates

['his space 1s tentionally left blank -
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Orkla India Limited (formerly known as Orkla India Private Limited and MTR Foods Private Limited)
CIN: UI5136KA1996PLC021007

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amaunts are in Rs. million. unless stated otherwise)

60 Events after the reporting period
(i) The Company is converted from Private Company limited by s
April 25, 2025

(i) Subsequent to year ended March 31, 2025, the Company has:

hares (Orkla India Private Limited) to Public Company limited by shares (Orkla India Limited) on

(a) Sub-divided 89,300,000 authorised equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 each into 893,000,000 authorised equity shares of face value of Re. 1 each.
(b) Sub-divided 13,698,923 issued, subscribed & paid-up equity shares of face valte of Rs. 10 each into 136,989,230 issued, subscribed & paid-up equity sharcs

of face value of Re. 1 cach.

As per our report of even date attached herein

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
ICAI Firm registration number: 101049W/E300004
Foods Private Limited)

Chartered Accountants

Chairperson & Director
DIN: 01361367

Place: Oslo, Norway
Date:; May 27, 2025

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 27, 2025

Suniana (?a'lnp
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 27, 2025

Yo

Rashmi Satish Joshi

Independent Pirector
DIN: 06641898

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 27, 2025
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Atle Vidar Nagel Johansen

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Orkla India Limited (formerly known as Orkla India Private Limited and MTR

Sanjay Shgrma
Managing Dircctor & Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 02581107

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 27, 2025

Katrsfiik Seshadri
Company Secretary
Membership no: A41800

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 27, 2025




